
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Meeting: Tuesday 29th October, 2019
at 2.30 pm. (Drawing Room)

A G E N D A

PART ONE

1.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

2.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

3.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

4.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  

5.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.  



6.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 1st October, 2019.

3 - 10

7.  Delegated Approvals - For Information (Booklet attached)  11 - 26

FOR DECISION 

(D) 8.  Planning Applications (Booklet attached) 
 

27 - 50

(D) 9.  Deferred Applications (Booklet attached) 
 

51 - 96

(D) 10.  Appeal Decision 79 Romney Park Dalton-in-Furness 
 

97 - 106

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

INVITATIONS TO SPEAK TO THE COMMITTEE (2.30p.m.)

2019/0566 - Chapel Hills Smallholding, Oak Lea Road, Barrow-in-Furness

Membership of Committee

Councillors Assouad
Burley
D. Edwards
Gawne
Hall
Husband
McEwan
Mooney
Nott
Seward
C. Thomson (Chairman)
M. A. Thomson (Vice-Chair)

For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:

Paula Westwood
Democratic Services Officer 
(Member Support)
01229 876322
pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Monday 21st October, 2019



PLANNING COMMITTEE

Meeting: Tuesday 1st October, 2019
at 2.30 pm. (Drawing Room)

PRESENT:- Councillors C. Thomson (Chair), M. A. Thomson (Vice-Chair), Assouad, 
Blezard, Burley, Gawne, Hall, Husband, McEwan, McLeavy and Morgan.

Officers Present:- Charles Wilton (Principal Planning Officer), Maureen Smith 
(Principal Planning Officer), Paula Westwood (Democratic Services Officer - Member 
Support) and Sandra Kemsley (Democratic Services Officer).

57 – The Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 1985 and Access to Information (Variation) 
Order 2006 – Urgent Item

RESOLVED:- That by reason of the special circumstances outlined below the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the following item of business not specified on the 
agenda should be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency in accordance 
with Section 100(B)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972.

Item Reason

Proposed Tree Preservation Order, In light of the current planning 
The Lisdoonie Hotel, Abbey Road, application, the Order is required to
Barrow-in-Furness (Minute No. 62). immediately protect the mature trees,

which are characteristic of the 
historic route into the Town Centre,
and allow time for a future detailed 
assessment of them to be 
undertaken.

58 – Declarations of Interest

Councillor Hall declared an interest in Planning Application 2019/0549 – Paddock 
View, Woodbine Lane, Newton-in-Furness (Minute No. 64) as he knew the applicant.  
He left the meeting during consideration of the application.

59 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors D. Edwards, Mooney and 
Nott. 

Councillors Blezard, McLeavy and Morgan had attended as substitutes for 
Councillors Nott, D. Edwards and Mooney respectively for this meeting only.

60 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 10th September, 2019 were taken as read and 
confirmed.

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



61 – Planning Performance Figures

The Development Services Manager (Planning and Enforcement) submitted a report 
indicating the latest planning performance figures covering the period from October, 
2017 up to June, 2019; the month which the Local Plan was adopted.  The figures 
demonstrated a steady rise in the number of applications, yet performance had been 
maintained above the Government targets.  It had been noted that during the 
reporting period, there had been a full complement of DM Officers and with one 
Officer having left the Authority in July, there was potential for a drop in performance 
at the next assessment.

Geographically, Dalton had accounted for nearly 25% of all applications, followed by 
Hindpool (12.24%) and Hawcoat (11.32%).  There were a number of broad 
conclusions that could be drawn from the latest figures.  The modest increase in the 
number of applications had suggested continued confidence in the local economy, 
and a buoyant home improvement market.

Validation

It had been noted that validation remained a concern as there had been a marked 
increase in the number of applications which had issues upon receipt, ranging from 
minor omissions such as a missed signature, to the exclusion of significant 
supporting information such as a ground report or a transport assessment.

Minor mistakes were to be expected where the Applicant acted on their own behalf 
but there had been concerns when Agents had submitted incomplete or inaccurate 
applications.  The subsequent exchange of correspondence and advice was not an 
efficient use of Officer time and resources, as a backlog of applications could soon 
develop.

The Development Services Manager advised the Committee that the Council’s local 
Validation List was almost complete and due out for consultation.  This would be 
publicised to all Agents to encourage a better quality of submission and reduce the 
current level of returned applications.

The Council do not have the resources to run training sessions for Agents; the only 
solution would be to provide them with feedback and adopt a robust procedure 
whereby poor submissions would be rejected without validating it within a specified 
timeframe, often two weeks.

Officer Workload

The average number of applications remained fairly static, ranging approximately 
126-128 per Officer.  That was likely to rise in the next period following the 
resignation of the temporary DM Officer until a replacement could be recruited.

Workloads would continue to be monitored and if necessary, temporary or Agency 
staff, or specialist Planning Consultants may need to be engaged to deal with 
specific Major applications, should performance figures falter.

Page 4

Agenda Item 6



Speed of Decision

The Council was currently above the Government thresholds for both Major (60%) 
and Other (70%) applications.  The figures had been 63.3% and 81.65% respectively 
for the last two year period.  The margin for Majors remained somewhat tight but that 
had been representative of the Section’s resources, having just two Officers dealing 
with them in addition their other workload.  The complexity of Majors meant that they 
needed to be dealt with by suitably qualified and remunerated staff.  For the Other 
applications, the Planning Panel would continue be used wherever possible, in order 
to maintain performance.

Quality of Decision

The Council actively promoted its paid pre-application service which sought to inform 
Applicants as to what likely issues would be raised by their proposal and what 
information would be needed to validate and determine it.

During the current reporting period, 52 requests had been received for pre-
application advice for a full range of proposals from householder applications to 
major commercial and housing schemes.  That had enabled Officers to improve the 
quality of prospective submissions in an attempt to overcome the previously 
mentioned validation issues.

The quality and effectiveness of the Committee’s decision making had been worth 
noting.  Decisions contrary to Officer recommendation were rare.  Less than 1% of 
decisions were taken to appeal, well below the Government’s 10% marker.  
Furthermore, the success rate with appeals was significantly high having defended 
eight out of the last nine appeals.
 
RESOLVED:-  To note the information.

62 – Proposed Tree Preservation Order, The Lisdoonie Hotel, Abbey Road, 
Barrow-in-Furness

The Development Services Manager (Planning and Enforcement) submitted a report 
regarding a proposed Tree Preservation Order in the grounds of the Lisdoonie Hotel, 
Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness.  A plan showing the location of the trees had been 
appended to the report.

He reported that the Council was currently dealing with a planning application to 
convert the function room of the Hotel into a retail store (Planning Application No. 
2019/0567 refers).  The site is on the historic route into the Town Centre, Abbey 
Road being characterised by its mature street trees which are complemented by 
landscaping on the sites either side of the highway.

There had been concerns that the retail scheme, if implemented, could result in the 
loss of a number of those trees, to the detriment of the overall street scene.  It had 
been proposed to issue a Tree Preservation Order which would protect the trees 
from work or potential felling.  National guidance was that an Area Order would be 
suitable for instances when urgent action was considered to be appropriate.  The 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



Order could then be reviewed prior to confirmation as to the details of numbers and 
species.

It had been noted that as part of the determination process, a survey had been 
commissioned by the Council’s Tree Consultants but the information would not be 
available until later in the month.  The Development Services Manager advised the 
Committee that the survey could be used as a review of the Area Order, but it had 
been considered that the initial protection of the trees was paramount in the interests 
of amenity.  Members had been requested to approve the serving of a Tree 
Preservation Order covering the area on which the trees are situated.

RESOLVED:-  To agree that a Tree Preservation Order by served covering the area 
on which the trees are situated.

Town and Country Planning Acts

63 – Delegated Decisions

The Assistant Director - Regeneration and Built Environment submitted for 
information details of planning applications in this report which he had determined 
under delegated authority (Minute No. 254, Planning Committee, 3rd September, 
2002, confirmed by Council 24th September, 2002).  The decisions are reported for 
your information.  The plans recommended for approval under the Town and Country 
Planning Acts will be subject to the standard conditions referred to in Minute No. 208 
(April 1971) of the Plans Sub-Committee, Barrow-in-Furness, County Borough 
Council, in addition to any conditions indicated hereunder.  Applications with a (P) 
beside the applicant’s name denotes those applications that were reported to the 
Planning Panel.

RESOLVED:- (i) To note the decisions made under the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended) as follows:-

2019/0512 Roof over yard and existing buildings at Billincote Farm, Newton 
Road, Dalton-in-Furness.

2019/0514 Proposed conversion of dwelling to form 2 no. 1 bedroom flats (1 no. 
at ground floor and 1 no. at first floor) at 58 Greengate Street, Barrow-
in-Furness.

2019/0528 Application for approval of details reserved by Condition No. 3, No. 4 
and No. 13 (Site investigation and ground assessment details) of 
planning permission 2019/0034 (Erection of two bedroom bungalow) 
at Proposed house, New Road, Askam-in-Furness.

2019/0561 Single storey extension forming enlarged kitchen and dining room at 
21 Cheltenham Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0550 Application for a minor material amendment in relation to Condition 
No. 2 (approved plans) following the grant of planning permission 
2017/0001 (Erection of a two storey and single storey extension with 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



associated works) to allow rearrangement of the internal layout of the 
proposed extensions which includes an increase in length of the 
proposed extensions and a revision to the hipped arrangements at 
The Old Vicarage Rest Home, Ireleth Road, Ireleth, Askam-in-
Furness.

2019/0410 Erection of a garage extension at 7 Garden Lea, Dalton-in-Furness.

2019/0541 Single storey rear and side extension to include store facility, wc, 
utility and kitchen extension at 10 Myrtle Terrace, Dalton-in-Furness.

2019/0523 Change of use from Tanning Salon (Use Class Sui Generis) to a 
Coach Travel Agent (Use Class A1) at 3 Lakes Parade, Ennerdale 
Drive, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0545 Proposed mono pitched kitchen extension to front elevation at 23 
School Terrace, Pit Lane, Lindal-in-Furness.

The following application had been refused:-

2019/0317 Demolition of barn and erection of a detached 3 bedroom house at 
North Stank Farm, Newton Cross Road, Newton-in-Furness.

(ii) To note the decisions made under the Building Act 1984/The Building 
Regulations 2010 as submitted by the Principal Building Control Surveyor.

Town and Country Planning Acts

The Planning Manager reported on the following planning applications:-

64 – Paddock View, Woodbine Lane, Newton-in-Furness

From Mr S. Mouland in respect of a proposed single storey granny flat in place of 
existing garage with adjoining store attached to existing house. Provision of car 
parking area at Paddock View, Woodbine Lane, Newton-in-Furness as shown on 
plan number 2019/0549.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

The Committee had undertaken a site visit prior to the meeting.

The applicants and an objector attended the meeting and made representations to 
the Committee.

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that planning permission be granted 
subject to the Standard Duration Limit and the following conditions:-

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 
years beginning with the date of this permission.

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



Reason

Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Compliance with Approved Plans

2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated 25/07/19 and the hereby approved 
documents defined by this permission as listed below, except where 
varied by conditions attached to this consent.

PVGF/1 Rev 2, 2 Rev 2, 3 Rev 2, 4, 5, 6 Rev 2, 7 Rev 2.

Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority.

3. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces, 
including walls, roofs, doors and windows of the extensions hereby 
permitted shall be of the same type, colour and texture as those used in 
the existing building.

Reason

To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development, and to minimise 
its impact upon the surrounding area.

Before Occupation

4. Prior to the beneficial occupation of the extension/annex hereby 
approved, the internal doors connecting to the main house between the 
'utility' and 'store' and 'store' and 'living area' must be constructed and 
operational, and thereafter be permanently retained.

Reason

To ensure the accommodation is used in a manner incidental to the 
enjoyment of the main dwelling house and not as a separate standalone 
dwelling.

Operational Conditions

5. The garage conversion/extension hereby permitted shall not be occupied 
at any time other than for purposes ancillary to the residential use of the 
dwelling known as Paddock View.

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



Reason

Planning permission is granted only to extend the existing dwelling for 
ancillary purposes only to meet the applicants needs, and not as a 
separate dwelling or planning unit.

6. The car parking area and access thereto, as annotated and outlined red 
on drawing no. PVGF/5, must be reserved for the parking of private motor 
vehicles associated with the dwelling known as Paddock View and no 
permanent development, whether permitted by the Town & Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any 
Order revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without modifications) or 
not, shall be carried out on that area of land in such position as to 
preclude vehicular access to the development hereby permitted.

Reason

To ensure that proper access and parking provision is made and retained 
for the use associated with the development hereby permitted.

65 – Chapel Hills Smallholding, Oak Lea Road, Barrow-in-Furness

From Mr J. Mark in respect of an application for an extension to agricultural building 
to provide welfare facilities and storage at Chapel Hills Smallholding, Oak Lea Road, 
Barrow-in-Furness as shown on plan number 2019/0566.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

The Committee had undertaken a site visit prior to the meeting.

An objector had attended the meeting to make representations to the Committee 
however, there was no record that such a request had been made.  The Principal 
Planning Officer explained that it would not be appropriate for the objector to address 
the Committee today as the same courtesy had not been extended to the applicant.  
However, it was open to the Committee to proceed and determine the application or 
alternatively to defer to allow invitations to be issued. 

It was moved by Councillor McEwan and seconded by Councillor Husband that the 
application be deferred to the next meeting to allow the applicant the opportunity to 
attend the meeting and address the Committee.

RESOLVED:- To agree to defer consideration of this application to the next meeting 
to allow the applicant the opportunity to make representations to the Committee.

66 – Withdrawn Application

The following application had been withdrawn:-

2019/0552  – Agricultural Building for the storing of large bales of hay, 
tractor/machinery and a lambing and shearing pen on Land at 
Paddock View, Woodbine Lane, Newton-in-Furness.

The meeting closed at 2.52 pm.

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



� � ��

���

�� ���

�

��
� ����������	

����������� ��������������������������������� ���������� �������������������� !"#$� %!�&#%'(#)#%*��+,-%�.�/,0%'12�3( %%"%4�56'�7889�: $� )#%!#!;�3( %%"%4�:�"$'#!�<0"(!"%4$� %!�/,%$#1= '",%�51# $;�56'�7889�: $� )#%!#!;�+,-%�.�/,0%'12�3( %%"%4�:>#=#(,?)#%'�@ % 4#)#%'�31,6#!01#;�:A%4( %!;�B1!#1�C97D�: $� )#%!#!;�+,-%� %!�/,0%'2�3( %%"%4�:/,%'1,(�,E�5!=#1'"$#)#%'$;�:A%4( %!;�F#40( '",%$�C99GH��+I#�3( %%"%4� ??("6 '",%$�"%�'I"$�1#?,1'�I =#�<##%�!#'#1)"%#!�<2�'I#�>#=#(,?)#%'�J#1="6#$�@ % 4#1�:3( %%"%4;�0%!#1�!#(#4 '#!� 0'I,1"'2�:@"%0'#�K,H�79G*�AL#60'"=#�/,))"''##*�G'I�M#<10 12�C97N*�6,%E"1)#!�<2�/,0%6"(�7$'�@ 16I�C97N�:@"%0'#�K,H�OP;H�+I#�!#6"$",%$� 1#�1#?,1'#!�E,1�2,01�"%E,1) '",%H�� ������������������������Q����������������RS������T���������

UVWXYWUYXVXZWYVWUYXVX[WXYWUYXV
Page 11

Agenda Item 7



� � ��

���

�� �����
�����������	
��
�����������������������������������
����
�� ������������ !"#$%%!�&"##'("��')*% +, +�-# "..�/-01#,'23����456��7���8�399),('*,% �:%#�$%#;.�*%�*#"".�.-1<"(*�%:�&#""=#"."#>'*,% �?#!"#�
@�A%B�����%#�*C"�:")), D�%:&��E�F('0%#"GH�&
�E/C"##FG�' !�&@�E/C"##FG�'*)' !�'!<'(" *�*%��I�J%%."�J#"" B K��L��')*% ��%-*CM'#!6����N��')*% �&%$ $,*C�A"$*% ='#,.C�/%- (,)O����P�������/C'#)".�M,)*% ����������	
��
����I���������3==/?A���������������
����
�� ���������
@�Q'$;.C"'!�J'#!" .�	'##%$+, +�-# "../-01#,'�23����2R6��7���8��"0%>')�%:�"S,.*, D�!"*'(C"!�D'#'D"�' !#"9)'("0" *�$,*C�'�!"*'(C"!�D'#'D"�'*�' %*C"#)%('*,% �$,*C, �(-#*,)'D"B K��L�Q'$(%'*�M'#!6����N�A�3O����P�������	'##F�T"..% ����������	
��
��������������3==/?A��������������������
�� �����������U".$,(;�3>" -"H�	'##%$+, +�-# "..H�/-01#,'H23����226��7���8��#"(*,% �%:�., D)"�.*%#"F�9,*(C"!�#%%:�.,!"�' !�9'#*#"'#�;,*(C" �!, , D�"S*" .,% B K��L�Q'$(%'*�M'#!6����N�A�3O����P�������	'##F�T"..% ����������	
��
�����
���������3==/?A���������������
���
�� ���������I�=F9"#.�/#%:*H�	'##%$+, +�-# "..H�/-01#,'H�23�@���6��7���8��, D)"�.*%#"F�:)'*�#%%:�"S*" .,% �*%�.,!"�' !�#"'#�%:9#%9"#*F�*%�9#%>,!"�'(("..,1)"�1"!#%%0�' !�$"*#%%0B��3(("..�#'09�*%�D'1)"�" *#' ("B K��L��,."!')"�M'#!6����N�A�3O����P�������T"  ,:"#�,(;, .% 

Page 12

Agenda Item 7



� � ��

���

�� �����
�����������	
��
������������������������������������
����
�� ������������ !"#!$%&��'($)(*�	!++,-./$.0)+$(&&*�)12+/!*�3��4��35��6���7�8+(9:/,$�,;�+(<#!9(1($:�</:9=(%�+,,;�>!+!>(? @��A��(-2!+$&B!+%5����C����D����E�������F($$/;(+�/9G/$&,$����������	4��
����
�������������������������������4���
�� ����������4�B/$9=(&:(+�H:+((:*�	!++,-./$.0)+$(&&*�)12+/!*�3��4��HI5��6���7��,$� !:(+/!#��1($%1($:�;,##,-/$>�!�>+!$:�,;<#!$$/$>�<(+1/&&/,$�	
��
�������J8+(9:/,$�,;%,)2#(�&:,+("�&/%(�+(!+�(K:($&/,$�;,+1/$>�):/#/:"+,,1�!:�>+,)$%�;#,,+�#('(#*�2(%+,,1��*�%+(&&/$>+,,1�!$%�($.&)/:(�!:�;/+&:�;#,,+�#('(#L�:,�!##,-�;,+�!$/$9+(!&(�/$�:=(�-/%:=�,;�:=(�(K:($&/,$�2"�411:,-!+%&�:=(�2,)$%!+"

@��A�M/&(%!#(�B!+%5����C����D����E�������F($$/;(+�/9G/$&,$����������	�N�
����4�����������������������������������
�� ���������8!+$&(�	!"��!+��!+G�B(&:�H=,+(�M,!%�	!++,-./$.0)+$(&&��)12+/!5��6���7�H/:/$>�,;�<,+:!9!2/$�;,+�)&(�!&�!�G/:(�&)+;/$>:(!9=/$>�9#!&&+,,1�!$%�&:,+(�!$%�!&&,9/!:(%�+(.&/:/$>�,;�(K/&:/$>�&:((#�9,$:!/$(+? @��A�B!#$("��,+:=B!+%5����C����D����E�������	!++"�F(&&,$����������	
��
����������������������������������������
�� �����������8&:)!+"��!+G��&G!1./$.0)+$(&&��)12+/!�3����F�5��6���7�H/$>#(�&:,+("�&/%(�(K:($&/,$�;,+1/$>�&:,+(�+,,1!$%�&)$�+,,1? @��A��!#:,$��,+:=B!+%5����C��&G!1�!$%O+(#(:=��!+/&=�,)$9/#D����E�������F($$/;(+�/9G/$&,$

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



� � ��

���

�� �����
�����������	
��
������������������������������������
����
�� ���������� !"#$%%�&'!$%(��)*+ )��$%%"+,*)�-.)*/)�	'  ,01$*1&/ *)""��/!2 $'�3-����	45��6���7�4 ,8,")9�$*:$%%�+,�8, ;<�$*�*, +<�)'"+�;, *) �+,�:, !*)0�!))+$*#� ,,!�$*;%/"$.)�,:�0$*9,0�'*9�:$ ))";'8)�9,, =�8 ,8,")9�'%+) '+$,*�,:�)>$"+$*#0$*9,0�+,�8 ,.$9)�*)0�)";'8)�9,, ")+=�;<'*#)�,:: ,*+�"$#*=�#)*) '%�$*+) *'%�'*9�)>+) *'%�9);, '+$.)/89'+)"=�*,�;<'*#)�,:�8 )")*+�/")�?�,/*+(��'++) @

A��B�� !"#$%%�C' 95����D���-E����F�������G'",*�H$8I$""����������	
��
����JJ���������-44K�L�M��������������N���
�� ���������	$ ;<0,,9�M,!$*$,*��+ ))+�	'  ,01$*1&/ *)""�/!2 $'�3-���N	C5��6���7�-88%$;'+$,*�:, �'��) +$:$;'+)�,:�3'0:/%*)""�:, �'*�>$"+$*#�O")�, �M).)%,8!)*+�?�3�OM@�:, �2/$%9$*#0, I�?) );+$,*�,:�'� )' �2,/*9' (�0'%%�+,�:, !�'*)*;%,")9�(' 9@�0$+<,/+�;,!8%($*#�0$+<�;,*9$+$,*�,PN�?4 $.'+)�8' I$*#�' )'�+,� )' �,:�+<)�8 ,8) +(@,:�8%'**$*#�8) !$""$,*�	
��
Q��
 A��B�C'%*)(��,/+<C' 95����D���-E����F�������G)**$:) M$;I$*",*����������	
��
���Q����������-44K�L�M��������������
����
�� ����������+'*I�3'*)��+'*I��/!2 $'5��6���7�-88%$;'+$,*�:, �'88 ,.'%�,:�9)+'$%"� )") .)9�2(�,*9$+$,*��,P���?)>+) *'%�%$#<+$*#@�'*9��,P�Q�?:%,, "%'2�%).)%@�,:�8%'**$*#�8) !$""$,*�
���NJ
?� );+$,*�,:�'�"+))%�: '!)9�'# $;/%+/ '%�2/$%9$*#�:, +<)�"+, '#)�,:�%$.)"+,;I�:))9"R�"/88%$)"�'*9!';<$*) (@ A��B�K,,");,+)C' 95����D���-E����F��������<' %)"�C$%+,*����������	���
���Q
����������-44���M��������������N���
�� ����������'*9";'%)�4' I�H)%$8'9��'*9";'%)�4' I�	'  ,01$*1&/ *)""��/!2 $'�3-����S�5��6���7�-88%$;'+$,*�:, �'�.' $'+$,*�,:�;,*9$+$,*�*,P��,:8%'**$*#�8) !$""$,*�	���
�J��
��?�,*"+ /;+$,*,:�+)!8, ' (�H)%$8, +@�$*�, 9) �+,�!,9$:(�+<)�T	$ 9�$+$#'+$,*�U��,*$+, $*#�4%'*TP A��B�� !"#$%%�C' 95����D�-"I'!�'*9V )%)+<�4' $"<�,/*;$%E����F��������<' %)"�C$%+,*

Page 14

Agenda Item 7



� � ��

���

�� �����
�����������	
���
������������������������������������������
� ���������
���� !�"#$�%&�'#�	$((�)*+,*�-(,#''�%-./(+$0��1���2�344&+ $5+�,�6�(�57#�#(# 5+�,��6�$�8#5$ 7#8�9$($9#$5�4&�5���:;�<�
���� !�"#$�%&�'#= >��?�@$) �$5�A$(80����B�;�3C����D�������	$((E�F#''�,����������	
���
���������������3GG�HI�������������������
���
� �����������J(#E��(+$(�%&�'#K�	$((�)*+,*�-(,#''K�%-./(+$K"3
L��MA0��1���2�344&+ $5+�,�6�(�57#�N$(+$5+�,��6� �,8+5+�,�,�<�:9$($9#�'4$ #�5��/#�(#'#(N#8�6�(�9$($9#�-'#�6�(4(+N$5#�N#7+ &#'=���6�4&$,,+,9�4#(.+''+�,
���������:�#N+'#8�&$E�-5�5��$&&�)�O�'#.+*8#5$ 7#8�7�-'#'�$,8��,#�8#5$ 7#8�7�-'#�$5�&$,8�66�P$(&'+8#���$8=�5��$&&�)�6�(�57#�9$($9#�5��/# �,N#(5#8�+,5��#Q5($�!+5 7#,�$,8�8+,+,9�'4$ #<

>��?����'# �5#A$(80����B�;�3C����D�������F#,,+6#(�+ !+,'�,����������	���
���R�����������3GG�HI�������������������
���
� ���������"$,8�$5���&)$E��(+N#K�	$((�)*+,*�-(,#''K�%-./(+$0��1���2�344(�N$&��6�8#5$+&'�(#'#(N#8�/E� �,8+5+�,�;�<L:6+,+'7#8�6&��(�&#N#&'�G&�5'�
�*
�=K�;�<���:'5(##5&+975+,9�8#5$+&'=K�;�<��:5+.#' $&#�6�(�+.4&#.#,5+,9&$,8' $4+,9�$,8�/+�*8+N#('+5E�.#$'-(#'=K�$,8�;�<
�:G7$'+,9��6�57#�8#N#&�4.#,5=�6�(�4&$,,+,94#(.+''+�,�	����
���
R�:#(# 5+�,��6�R
�7�-'#'= >��?�A$&,#E�;�(57A$(80����B�;�3C����D�������%7$(&#'�A+&5�,����������	
��
���R
����������3GG%H;���������������������
� �������������#8�$!�3N#,-#K�	$((�)*+,*�-(,#''K�%-./(+$K"3
L���;0��1���2��#$(�'+,9&#�'5�(#E�6&$5�(��6#8�8+,+,9�(��.#Q5#,'+�,�$,8�4(�N+'+�,��6�($+'#8�8# !+,9�:R��..7+97=�5��#,$/&#�$  #''�5��4(�4�'#8�#Q5#,'+�,< >��?����'# �5#A$(80����B�;�3C����D�������F#,,+6#(�+ !+,'�,

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



� � ��

���

�� �����
�����������	
���
������������������������������������������
�  ���������!"#$%"&�'"()*�	"++%#,-(,./+()00*��/12+-"*'�
3�3!45��6���7�8-(9:)�0&%+);�<+%(&�"(=�+)"+�)>&)(0-%(0�&%�?+%@-=)"==-&-%(":�)(,0/-&)�2)=+%%10�<%+�+)0-=)(&0�"(="00%$-"&)=�-(&)+(":�":&)+"&-%(0A���:&)+"&-%(0�&%)>-0&-(9�=+-@)#";�<%+)$%/+&�&%�$+)"&)�&/+(-(9�"+)""(=�?"+B-(9 C��D�!"#$%"&�E"+=5����F����G����H�������I"/+))(�81-&J����������	
��
����
�������������������������������3�����
�  ��������
��I"+-()�K)++"$)*�L%"�M0:"(=*�	"++%#,-(,./+()00*�/12+-"*�'�
���NN5��6���7��+%@-0-%(�%<�"�=%+1)+�#-(=%#�&%�0%/&J�):)@"&-%( C��D�L%%0)$%&)E"+=5����F����G����H�������O)((-<)+�-$B-(0%(����������	
���
������������������������������������������
�  ���������:<+)=�	"++%#�!)":&J��)(&+)*��/B)�8&+))&*�	"++%#,-(,./+()00*��/12+-"*�'�
3�'	5��6���7��+%@-0-%(�%<�$%(=)(0)+�/(-&�&%�+)"+�%<�P%+-9-(":Q2/-:=-(9A C��D��)(&+":�E"+=5����F����G����H�������I"/+))(�81-&J����������	
���
������������������������������������������
�  ��������'"(=�"=R"$)(&�&%��/(()+J%:1)��%&&"9)0�/(()+J%:1)��0B"1,-(,./+()00��/12+-"�'�
��KS5��6���7�M(0&"::"&-%(�%<�"�()#�?"$B"9)�&+)"&1)(&�?:"(&�&%+)?:"$)�"(�%:=�0)?&-$�&"(B C��D��":&%(��%+&JE"+=5����F��0B"1�"(=M+):)&J��"+-0J�%/($-:G����H�������	"++;�O)00%(

Page 16

Agenda Item 7



� � ��

���

�� �����
�����������	
���
������������������������������������
��
���
� �������������  !"�#$%&'�	%(($)*+,*-.(,!//'��.0 (+%1��2���3��445+6%7+$,�8$(�%�,$,*0%7!(+%5�%0!,&0!,78$55$)+,9�9(%,7�$8�45%,,+,9�4!(0+//+$,	
���
:����;�445+6%7+$,�8$(�%44($<%5�$8(!/!(<!&�0%77!(/�8$55$)+,9�$.75+,!�%44($<%5�$845%,,+,9�4!(0+//+$,�	
���
�����=�7$�%55$)�8$(7>!�(!&!/+9,�$8�8+(/7�%,&�/!6$,&�85$$(�)+,&$)/�7$8($,7�!5!<%7+$,

?��@�A+,&4$$5�B%(&1����C����D����E�������F%.(!!,�G0+7>����������	
��
���H
�������������������������������������
� ���������
��A%)6$%7�I%,!'�	%(($)*+,*-.(,!//'��.0 (+%'I�
���AJ1��2���3�#!%(�/+,95!�/7$(!"�!K7!,/+$,�8$(0+,9�L+76>!,'&+,+,9�%,&�5+<+,9�%(!% ?��@�A%)6$%7�B%(&1����C����D����E�������M!,,+8!(�+6L+,/$,����������	���
������������������������������������������
� ����������58(!&�	%(($)�A!%57>��!,7(!'��.L!�G7(!!7'�	%(($)*+,*-.(,!//'��.0 (+%'�I�
��I	1��2���3�I+/7!&�	.+5&+,9��$,/!,7�8$(�7>!�4($<+/+$,�$86$,&!,/!(�.,+7�7$�(!%(�$8�;$(+9+,%5=� .+5&+,9N ?��@��!,7(%5�B%(&1����C����D����E�������F%.(!!,�G0+7>����������	
��
���H����������������������������������
���
� ������������$(75%,&��(!/6!,7�	%(($)*+,*-.(,!//��.0 (+%I�
���JO1��2���3�G+,95!�/7$(!"�(!%(�!K7!,/+$,�8$(0+,9�%�/.,�($$0%,&�5$87�6$,<!(/+$,�8$(0+,9�7>+(&� !&($$0�)+7>8($,7�%,&�(!%(�<!5.K�)+,&$)/N�;#!/. 0+//$,�$845%,,+,9�%445+6%7+$,�	
��
�����7$�%�(!<+/!&/6>!0!= ?��@�A%)6$%7�B%(&1����C����D����E�������	%(("�M!//$,

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



� � ��

���

� �� ��
�

�

���������� ������ ������ �

�����������	���
������������������������������ !��"�#$%%&'�()'*�+,%���-..�/.012�0304.5����'6�7��8��8��� ! 9*�()'*�� #�:3�;-<52�=>51-5�?0@@ABCD1C�-@1522E-F4@D0�;= G�!H:I�*%*J(&�K50@�2D1L.5�23A@5M�5N3512DA1�OA@FD1L�02-1@AAFP Q(�7�KD25R0.5�S0@RT��'J'*��=UUVA1RT��'J'*�T()���W��!��� !����������������/E��� !��"�"$%%&'�()'*�+,%��/0@315@=-3XA@D3M�/.01EX5V<����'6�7��8��8��� !
9*�()'*��  W�?D@VXBAAR�Y@D>5Z�[.>5@23A1Z�E-F4@D0Z;= ��!\]I�*%*J(&�K50@�2D1L.5�23A@5M�5N3512DA1�OA@FD1L�015N351R5R�45R@AAF�BD3X�512-D35P Q(�7�@̂@A@�VA-.R�1A3OD1R�B0@RT��'J'*��=UU@A>5RT��'J'*�T()��  � ���� !��������������������� !��"�W$%%&'�()'*�+,%���-..�/.012�0304.5����'6�7� !��8��� ! 9*�()'*��_��/0@<�Y@D>5�?0@@ABCD1C�-@1522�E-F4@D0;= G�!??I�*%*J(&�:D1L.5�23A@5M�@50@�5N3512DA1P Q(�7�/0@<2DR5�S0@RT��'J'*��=UUVA1RT��'J'*�T()�� 8��!��� !��������������������� !��"# $%%&'�()'*�+,%���-..�/.012�0304.5����'6�7� ���!��� ! 9*�()'*��\5B4@DRL5�̀A-25�̂B01�E.A25�?0@@ABCD1C�-@1522�E-F4@D0�;= G�!̀ [I�*%*J(&�\5B�5N35@10.�RAA@B0MZ�15B�RAA@B0M�3A�OA@F23A@5Z�@5D123035�23A@5@AAF�a�U@A>DR5�15B�OD@5RAA@2�3A�OD@23�O.AA@�VA@@DRA@P Q(�7�\5B40@12S0@RT��'J'*��=UUVA1RT��'J'*�T()���G��!��� !

Page 18

Agenda Item 7



� � ��

���

� �� ��
�

�

���������� ������ ������ �

�����������	���
������������������������������ !��"! #$$%&�'(&)�*+$���,--�.-/01�/2/3-4����&5�6�� ��7��� ! 8)�'(&)���9�:;--�<=/>�?/@@=AB;0B�,@0411�C,D3@;/�EF ""GHI�)$)J'%�K;0L-4�12=@4M�1;>4�/0>�@4/@�4N2401;=0�A;2O;024@0/-�/-24@/2;=01�P=@D;0L�40-/@L4>�=Q40�Q-/0-;R;0L�S;2TO40�>;0;0L�/@4/U�,2;-;2M�/0>�VCW X'�6�:/AT=/2�V/@>Y��&J&)��FQQT=0>Y��&J&)�Y'(���Z� ���� !����������������?���� !��[!!#$$%&�'(&)�*+$��?,;->;0L�\=2;T4�/2/3-4����&5�6��9� ���� ! 8)�'(&)��]��:=-S4@�K2@442�?/@@=AB;0B�,@0411�C,D3@;/EF "�]<VI�)$)J'%�C=0R4@1;=0�=P�L/@/L4�;02=�4N240>4>�S;2TO40/0>�12=@4�,2;-;2M�@==DW X'�6�:;0>Q==-�V/@>Y��&J&)��FTT4Q24>Y��&J&)�Y'(���9� ���� !��������������������� !��][Z#$$%&�'(&)�*+$���,--�.-/01�/2/3-4����&5�6��"��9��� ! 8)�'(&)��9�.@=1Q4T2�<=/>�?/@@=AB;0B�,@0411�C,D3@;/EF Z�!FFI�)$)J'%�<4/@�/0>�1;>4�12=@4M�Q;2TO4>�@==P�4N2401;=0W<4D=R/-�=P�;024@0/-�P@=02�E=,0L4�-=/>�34/@;0LA/--WQ̂L@/>4�=P�4N;12;0L�P;@12�P-==@�VWCW�2=�T@4/24�/KO=A4@�<==D�_�1;>4�̀=@D4@W X'�6�./@S1;>4�V/@>Y��&J&)��FQQT=0>Y��&J&)�Y'(���Z��!��� !��������������������� !��[�!#$$%&�'(&)�*+$���,--�.-/01�/2/3-4����&5�6�� ��7��� ! 8)�'(&)��7�.=@2-/0>�C@41T402�?/@@=AB;0B�,@0411C,D3@;/�EF "�"GaI�)$)J'%�K;0L-4�12=@4M�@4/@�4N2401;=0�P=@D;0L�/1,0@==D�/0>�-=P2�T=0R4@1;=0�A;2O�>=@D4@W X'�6�:/AT=/2�V/@>Y��&J&)��FQQT=0>Y��&J&)�Y'(�� �� ���� !

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



� � ��

���

� �� ��
�

�

���������� ������ ������ �

�����������	���
������������������������������ !��"#�$%%&'�()'*�+,%���-..�/.012�0304.5����'6�7��#��!��� ! 8*�()'*��9"�:-;5�<3=553�>0==?@AB1A�-=1522�C-D4=B0EF G� HIJ�*%*K(&�CL01M5�?N�-25�B1O?.OB1M�B135=10.�0.35=03B?12P Q(�7�RB1ST??.�U0=SV��'K'*��FTTW?1SV��'K'*�V()���#��!��� !����������������>���� !��"9X$%%&'�()'*�+,%��>-B.SB1M�Y?3BW5�0304.5����'6�7��X��!��� ! 8*�()'*��G!�H5S?0;�FO51-5�>0==?@AB1A�-=1522C-D4=B0�EF #��EZJ�*%*K(&�H5.?W03B?1�?N�;B3WL51�B13?�45S=??DP Q(�7�H??25W?35U0=SV��'K'*��FWW5T35SV��'K'*�V()���X��!��� !����������������>���� !��"9#$%%&'�()'*�+,%��>-B.SB1M�Y?3BW5�0304.5����'6�7��G��!��� ! 8*�()'*��9�[0D0=�\0=S512�>0==?@AB1A�-=1522�C-D4=B0EF G�#][J�*%*K(&�\=?-1S�N.??=�2BS5�5̂3512B?1P Q(�7�U0.15_�Y?=3LU0=SV��'K'*��FWW5T35SV��'K'*�V()���G��!��� !����������������>���� !��"9!$%%&'�()'*�+,%��>-B.SB1M�Y?3BW5�0304.5����'6�7��"��!��� ! 8*�()'*�� 9�U?=S2@?=3L�<3=553�>0==?@AB1A�-=1522C-D4=B0�EF G�XH�J�*%*K(&�H5D?O5�;B3WL51�@0..�01S�B1230..�.B135.̀�=5T.0W50..�5̂B23B1M�]/�C�@B1S?@2�01S�S??=2�01S3L5=D0.�-TM=0S5�?N�M=?-1S�N.??=�@0..2P Q(�7�RB1ST??.�U0=SV��'K'*��FWW5T35SV��'K'*�V()���"��!��� !

Page 20

Agenda Item 7



� � ��

���

� �� ��
�

�

���������� ������ ������ �

�����������	���
������������������������������ !��"��#$$%&�'(&)�*+$���,-./-01�234-56�7478.6����&9�:��"� ���� ! ;)�'(&)��<�=47>>3?/�=4?664��7??3@A-0AB,?06CC�D,E8?-7FG H�<IJK�)$)L'%�D?6746�3M60-01�>?3E�N-45O60�-043�6P460C-3070/�530Q6?4�17?716�-043�N-45O60R S'�:�T7?NC-/6�U7?/V��&L&)��G556M46/V��&L&)�V'(���"� ���� !��������������������� !��"�"#$$%&�'(&)�*+$���,-./-01�234-56�7478.6����&9�:� H� ���� ! ;)�'(&)��W�D?,EE35N�X?-Q6��7??3@A-0AB,?06CCD,E8?-7�FG H�HFUK�)$)L'%�Y6E3Q7.�3>�6P-C4-01�530C6?Q743?Z�?33>�70/-0C47..74-30�3>�06@�=,M6?.-1O4�?33>-01�CZC46ER S'�:�I7@5374�U7?/V��&L&)��G556M46/V��&L&)�V'(�� H� ���� !��������������������� !��"�<#$$%&�'(&)�*+$���,-./-01�234-56�7478.6����&9�:� H� ���� ! ;)�'(&)�� W"�=3,4O�Y3@��7??3@A-0AB,?06CC�D,E8?-7FG W��I[K�)$)L'%�\P57Q74-30�3>�M7/�>3,0/74-30�70/�6?654-30�3>06@�.37/�867?-01�@7..�43�47N6�6P-C4-01�.-046.60/CR S'�:�Y33C65346U7?/V��&L&)��G556M46/V��&L&)�V'(�� H� ���� !��������������������� !��"�]#$$%&�'(&)�*+$���,-./-01�234-56�7478.6����&9�:� H� ���� ! ;)�'(&)��WW�̂604E6?6�D?6C5604��7??3@A-0AB,?06CCD,E8?-7�FG H�H2FK�)$)L'%�\0.7?1-01�3>�6P-C4-01�3M60-01�-043�?67?6P460C-30R S'�:�I7@5374�U7?/V��&L&)��G556M46/V��&L&)�V'(�� H� ���� !

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



� � ��

���

� �� ��
�

�

���������� ������ ������ �

�����������	���
������������������������������ !��"�#$%%&'�()'*�+,%���-./0.12�345.67�8589/7����':�;��"� ���� ! <*�()'*��=>�?8@/.1A41�B5C775��8CC4@D.1DE-C17AAF-G9C.8�HI J��KLM�*%*N(&�?7G4O8/�4P�.157C18/�@8//�810�P4CG85.41�4P�A5-0@8//�54�Q8C5.5.41�4PP�7R.A5.12�985SC44GT U(�;�F715C8/�V8C0W��'N'*��I667Q570W��'N'*�W()���"� ���� !��������������������� !��"�J$%%&'�()'*�+,%���-./0.12�345.67�8589/7����':�;��"� ���� ! <*�()'*��>>�B8O7A�H817�XC7/75S�IAY8GD.1DE-C17AAF-G9C.8�HI =�"Z[M�*%*N(&�F41A5C-65.41�4P�98/641\T U(�;�K8/541�34C5SV8C0W��'N'*��I667Q570W��'N'*�W()���"� ���� !��������������������� !��=]!$%%&'�()'*�+,%���-./0.12�345.67�8589/7����':�;�� � ���� ! <*�()'*���"�LS7�FC7A6715�K817�̂S\//�_8CY��8CC4@D.1DE-C17AA�F-G9C.8�HI J�J?IM�*%*N(&�?7G4O8/�4P�.157C18/�@8//AT U(�;�Z8@6485�V8C0W��'N'*��I667Q570W��'N'*�W()��� � ���� !��������������������� !��"  $%%&'�()'*�+,%���-./0.12�345.67�8589/7����':�;��!� ���� ! <*�()'*����Z8C0Y1455�̂8C071A��8CC4@D.1DE-C17AAF-G9C.8�HI J�J3̀M�*%*N(&�?7/46857�985SC44Ga�.1A58//�Q85.4�044CAaC7G4O8/�4P�.157C18/�@8//�810�@4CY�54�A58.C68A7810�P.C7Q/867T U(�;�Z8@6485�V8C0W��'N'*��I667Q570W��'N'*�W()���!� ���� !

Page 22

Agenda Item 7



� � ��

���

� �� ��
�

�

���������� ������ ������ �

�����������	���
������������������������������ !��"!#$%%&'�()'*�+,%���-./01.23/45.6/7�0891:/6508����';�<� =��>��� !
?*�()'*��@6.1�A/-/650�B6CC�D-01�E-..5FG60G@3.0188H3IJ.6-�D2 =�KLLM�*%*N(&�O19C-:1I10/�5P�PC-/�.55P�P60684�60:C3Q60R�.55PC6R4/8�-0Q�.19C-:1I10/�5P�Q55.�F60Q5F�8:.110/5�@6.1�A/-/650S T(�<�U-C017�V5./4U-.QW��'N'*��299:50QW��'N'*�W()���#� ���� !����������������O2��� !��X>>$%%&'�()'*�+,%��O1R3C-.68-/650����';�<�K���!��� ! ?*�()'*�� X��O5581�O5-Q�E-..5FG60G@3.0188�H3IJ.6-D2 K��YYM�*%*N(&��08/-CC-/650�5P�F55QJ3.01.S T(�<�O681Q-C1�U-.QW��'N'*��O1R3C-.W��'N'*�W()���K� ���� !����������������@Z��� !��X!=$%%&'�()'*�+,%��@3CC��C-08Z-/-JC1����';�<��K� ���� ! ?*�()'*��=�[-.C�B1-Q5F�E-..5FG60G@3.0188�H3IJ.6-D2 K�!A\M�*%*N(&�A60RC1�8/5.17�.1-.�1]/108650�/5�-�/6IJ1.�P.-I19.591./7S T(�<�O681Q-C1�U-.QW��'N'*��299.5̂1QW��'N'*�W()�� =� ���� !����������������@Z��� !��X��$%%&'�()'*�+,%��@3CC��C-08Z-/-JC1����';�<� !��>��� ! ?*�()'*�����_.17�@.6-.�HC581�E-..5FG60G@3.0188H3IJ.6-�D2 K��̀UM�*%*N(&�H50̂1.8650�5P�R-.-R1�/5�P5.I�a6/:410�-0Q60/1.0-C�-C/1.-/6508b T(�<�O5581:5/1U-.QW��'N'*��299.5̂1QW��'N'*�W()�� !��!��� !

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



� � ��

���

� �� ��
�

�

���������� ������ ������ �

�����������	���
������������������������������ !��"#�$%%&'�()'*�+,%���-./0.12�345.67�8589/7����':�;�����!��� ! <*�()'*��� =�>997?�@480��8AA4BC.1CD-A17EE�F-G9A.8H> I�=JKL�*%*M(&�@7G4N8/�4O�6P.G17?�9A78E5�B8//�810.1E58//85.41�4O�978GQ�.1E58//85.41�4O�N7/-RB.104BS T(�;�U8AVE.07�W8A0X��'M'*��>667Y570X��'M'*�X()������!��� !��������������������� !��"!=$%%&'�()'*�+,%���-./0.12�345.67�8589/7����':�;��Z� ���� ! <*�()'*��II��8/G4A8/�[A.N7��8AA4BC.1CD-A17EE�F-G9A.8H> Z��\KL�*%*M(&��A.6V�-Y�7R.E5.12�044A�810�A7G4N8/�4O�.157A18/B8//�975B771�V.56P71�810�0.1.12�A44GS T(�;�@44E76457W8A0X��'M'*��>667Y570X��'M'*�X()���Z� ���� !��������������������� !��"!#$%%&'�()'*�+,%���-./0.12�345.67�8589/7����':�;��I� ���� ! <*�()'*���.654A.8�\4-E7�>/97A5�U/867�]4-5P��8AA4BC.1CD-A17EE�F-G9A.8�H> I�Ẑ _L�*%*M(&�@7641O.2-A7�7R.E5.12�98E7G715�54./75�0A8.1827O4A�17B�54./75�810�98E.1S T(�;�W8/17?�34A5PW8A0X��'M'*��>667Y570X��'M'*�X()���I� ���� !��������������������� !��# Z$%%&'�()'*�+,%���-./0.12�345.67�8589/7����':�;� �� ���� ! <*�()'*��Z��F41?7AE�>N71-7��8AA4BC.1CD-A17EEF-G9A.8�H> I�IJ̀L�*%*M(&�D4AG85.41�4O�B75�A44GS T(�;�\8B6485�W8A0X��'M'*��>667Y570X��'M'*�X()�� �� ���� !

Page 24

Agenda Item 7



� � ��

���

� �� ��
�

�

���������� ������ ������ �

�����������	���
������������������������������ !��"��#$$%&�'(&)�*+$���,--�.-/01�/2/3-4����&5�6��7��7��� ! 8)�'(&)��99�:34;<=;0�>2;442�?/;;=@AB0A�,;0411C,D3;B/�E: F��G>H�)$)I'%�J/;/K4�<=0L4;1B=0�/0M�1D/--�N-/2�;==N4O2401B=0�2=�;4/;�2=�P;=LBM4�/<<411B3-434M;==D�/0M�@42;==DQ R'�6�?/;;=@�S1-/0MT/;MU��&I&)��:PP;=L4MU��&I&)�U'(��� � ���� !��������������������� !��"� #$$%&�'(&)�*+$���,--�.-/01�/2/3-4����&5�6��7��7��� ! 8)�'(&)��V��?/-D=;/-�W;BL4�?/;;=@AB0A�,;0411�C,D3;B/E: V��XYH�)$)I'%�>B0K-4�12=;4Z�N-/2�;==N�4O2401B=0�/0M�B024;0/-/-24;/2B=01�2=�P;=LBM4�/<<411B3-4�34M;==D�/0M@42�;==DQ R'�6�[==14<=24T/;MU��&I&)��:PP;=L4MU��&I&)�U'(���V� ���� !��������������������� !��"��#$$%&�'(&)�*+$���,--�.-/01�/2/3-4����&5�6��7��7��� ! 8)�'(&)��\�.ZP4;1�C;=N2�?/;;=@AB0A�,;0411�C,D3;B/E: V�!WWH�)$)I'%�>B0K-4�12=;4Z�4O2401B=0�2=�;4/;�/0M�1BM4�=NP;=P4;2Z�2=�P;=LBM4�34M;==D�/0M�@42;==DQ R'�6�[B14M/-4�T/;MU��&I&)��:PP;=L4MU��&I&)�U'(���V� ���� !��������������������� !��9F #$$%&�'(&)�*+$���,--�.-/01�/2/3-4����&5�6��\� ���� ! 8)�'(&)�� ��]Z;2-4�̂4;;/<4�W/-2=0AB0A�,;0411�C,D3;B/E: 9�7?.H�)$)I'%�>B0K-4�12=;4Z�4O2401B=0Q R'�6�W/-2=0�_=;2̀T/;MU��&I&)��:PP<=0MU��&I&)�U'(�� F� ���� !

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

FOR DECISION 
 

 
29th October 2019 

 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen,  
 
 The applications within this report have been submitted for determination 
under the Town and Country Planning Acts and associated legislation. 
 
 All applications within this report are “Delegated” to this Committee but can be 
moved “Non-Delegated” by a Member of the Committee under the terms adopted for 
the Scheme of Delegation approved by Council, 16th May, 1994.  Any such motion 
needs to be accepted by a majority of Members of the Committee present (Council, 
8th August, 1995).  All applications left as Delegated will be decided by the 
Committee and will not be subject to confirmation by Council. 
 
 The application plan numbers also refer to files for the purposes of 
background papers. 
 
 
 
 
 

Jason Hipkiss 
 

Planning Manager 
 

Page 1 of 15

Page 27

Agenda Item 8



B21/2019/0540 
Planning Committee 
29th October 2019   

  

  

Application Number : B21/2019/0540 Date Valid :06/09/2019 

Address : 11 Sun Street, Ireleth, Askam-in-
Furness Cumbria LA16 7ET 

Case Officer : Barry Jesson 

Proposal : Installation of a raised patio to adjacent opening to lounge. 

Ward : Dalton North Ward Parish : Askam and Ireleth Parish Council 

Applicant : Mr and Mrs Peak   
Agent : Mr Chris Bugler, Chris Bugler 
Architect Ltd.  

Statutory Date : 01/11/2019 
Recommendation : Granted with 
conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF- Paragraph 127 

Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to 
sustainable development 

2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development 
Criteria 

3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H17 - Protection of Residential Privacy 
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H25 - Design of Patio areas and 

Balconies 

Summary of Main Issues 

The main issue is whether the raising of the existing ground level is to such an extent that it 
results in an unacceptable privacy loss or level of overlooking.  

 

Page 2 of 15

Page 28

Agenda Item 8



 

Non Material Considerations 

None 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

  

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Hollowgate High Riddings, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

1 0 1 0 

Summary of objection 

Concern at limited consultation and potential reduction of privacy in garden. 

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Askam and Ireleth Parish Council 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
   

List of Organisation Responses 

 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 09/09/2019  

“Building regulation approval required for the proposals” 

  

Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The application relates to a two storey detached building situated in the rear garden of 
'The Old Parsonage' within Ireleth's Conservation Area.  It is currently being renovated on the 
basis of providing additional accommodation incidental to the occupation of the main 
dwelling, rather than being occupied as a separate dwelling in its own right. 

Page 3 of 15

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Installation of a raised patio to adjacent opening to lounge. 

 

3. Relevant History 
 
3.1 1990/0815 The Old Parsonage, Sun Street, Ireleth, Askam-in-Furness Two storey side 
extension and roof alteration Appcond 25/01/1990 
 
3.2 B21/2007/1034 High Riddings Hollowgate Ireleth Askam-in-Furness Cumbria LA16 7ET 
Erection of a two storey side extension with revised access arrangements (affects a public 
right of way) Appcond 17/10/2007 
 
3.3 B21/2010/1489 High Riddings Hollowgate Ireleth Askam-in-Furness Cumbria LA16 7ET 
Application for a new planning permission to replace an extant planning permission in order 
to extend the time limit for implementation : Erection of a 2 storey side extension with revised 
access arrangements (2007 / 1034). Appcond 21-DEC-2010 
 
3.4 B21/2011/0570 High Riddings Hollowgate Ireleth Askam-in-Furness Cumbria LA16 7ET 
Installation of balcony including insertion of access windows to kitchen and lounge on west 
elevation. Appcond 17-OCT-2011 
 
3.5 B21/2014/0146 High Riddings Hollowgate Ireleth Askam-in-Furness Cumbria LA16 7ET 
Erection of a first storey extension above existing garage to accommodate new lounge/diner 
and front entrance. Appcond 06-MAY-2014 
 
3.6 B21/2018/0075 11 Sun Street Ireleth Askam-in-Furness Cumbria LA16 7ET Conversion of 
double storey brick built storage building to two garages and two storage rooms. 
WITHDRAWN 04/07/2018 

 

4. Officer Assessment 

4.1 The proposal is for a raised patio located to the western side of the building, which in turn 
is located in the rear garden of the main dwelling.  As part of the conversion works, a new 
opening to the lounge has been created in the upper side elevation, under permitted 
development rights.  Whilst this opening is at first floor level, the ground rises sharply to 
this side of the outbuilding, originally cut into the banking, rendering the lower floor effectively 
underground.  The patio, with a footprint of approximately 5.5m x 5.5m, is indicated to be no 
more than 1.2m higher than the existing ground level, at the highest section.  At the lowest it 
is approximately 0.3m when scaled from the plan. Glazed guarding is to be installed above 
the patio level for safety. 

 

 

Page 4 of 15

Page 30

Agenda Item 8



 

4.2 With sloping ground, the Government's 'Permitted development rights for householders 
Technical Guidance' document states "Where ground level is not uniform (for example if the 
ground is sloping), then the ground level is the highest part of the surface of the ground next 
to the building.)"  On this basis, it is very likely the raised patio would benefit from permitted 
development, given it is shown to be 0.3m where it meets the highest part of the ground 
surface.  However, given that the finished level may fall centimetres either side of that figure, 
express permission is sought. 

4.3 As the change in ground level is not significant, the impact on surrounding privacy is 
commensurate.  Local Plan Policy H17 relates to the protection of residential privacy, though 
it only references that between habitable rooms, of which clearly a patio is not.   

4.4 However, the separation exceeds the specified 21m when relying on distance alone, 
regardless of the patio's status, as in excess of 25m remains to both the side gable of High 
Riddings to the west, and the terraced properties to the north.  The distance to 11 Sun Street 
is inconsequential given that the purpose of the accommodation is incidental to the main 
house - it forms part of the same planning unit and is to be occupied by the same family.  

4.5 Concern has been raised by a neighbour regarding increased potential for overlooking into 
a section of their garden and the need for additional planting to better screen such views.  
Policy H25 is aimed primarily at the creation of patios over existing extensions (typically on 
flat roof extensions) where the difference in ground level is often greater.  In this instance the 
difference between the patio and the existing ground level is minimal, so little change will 
result.  Some planting and screening exists between the properties, and it is not considered 
that the development is unacceptable without requiring increased screening.  Attaching a 
condition to this effect would therefore not meet the '6 tests' found in national guidance.  
Either party could increase the level of planting/screening if desired. 

4.6 Regarding consultation, whilst only High Riddings was notified by letter (as the only 
property which adjoins the application site) a site notice was displayed at the junction of Sun 
Street & Ireleth Road. The statutory publicity criteria are therefore met. 

 

5. Conclusions 

5.1 Following this submission, and under greater scrutiny from officers, the patio is likely to 
benefit from permitted development; that notwithstanding, the applicant wishes to obtain 
formal consent. On their merits the additions are not considered to result in any adverse 
impact on the residential amenity of surrounding properties given the minimal change in 
ground levels. 

 

 

 

Page 5 of 15

Page 31

Agenda Item 8



 

6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the Standard Duration Limit 
and the following conditions : - 

  
1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with 
the date of this permission. 
 
Reason 
 
Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, 
as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in accordance with the 
application dated 12/07/19 and the hereby approved documents defined by this permission 
as listed below, except where varied by conditions attached to this consent. 
 
Drawing No.548/06 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved by 
the Planning Authority. 
 
 
Informative 
  

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out. 

   

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

   

  

  

Page 6 of 15

Page 32

Agenda Item 8



Page 7 of 15

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 8



Page 8 of 15

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 8



B18/2019/0594 
Planning Committee 
29th October 2019   

  

  

Application Number : B18/2019/0594 Date Valid :19/08/2019 

Address : Street Record Hayeswater Drive 
Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria 

Case Officer : Charles Wilton 

Proposal : Removal of condition No. 16 (Footpath Link to Hollygate Road) of planning 
permission 2016/0126  

Ward : Dalton South Ward 
Parish : Dalton Town with Newton Parish 
Council 

Applicant : MT Wood and Sons  Agent : Neil Price Limited  

Statutory Date : 14/10/2019 Recommendation : Approval 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy C2 - Development and the Coast 
2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to 

sustainable development 
3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria 
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 – Design 

 

Summary of Main Issues 

The footpath link could provide a convenient link between Cemetery Hill and Hollygate Road but 
doubts over public safety matters, such as the gradient which can reasonably be achieved, has 
resulted in the County's design standards not being met. As a consequence it appears that the 
link will not be adopted as part of the estate road and pavements. 

 

 

 

Page 9 of 15

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Hayeswater Drive 2, 4, 6, 8, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

0 0 0 0 

   

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
Dalton With Newton Town Council 
   

List of Organisation Responses 

Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 21/08/2019  

“no comment from Estates” 

Highways Cumbria County Council (Highways) 18/09/2019  

"Cumbria County Council as the Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) has 
reviewed the submitted material and has the following comments and recommendations: 

Whilst this footpath link would provide a benefit for some highway users as a more convenient 
route for some journeys to and from the site, it is not considered critical in this instance for this 
site.  It is likely that a significant proportion of trips on foot would be to the town centre and other 
main facilities such as schools where Cemetery Hill will be the obvious route. 

It is acknowledged that as part a wider network of foot-ways and footpath routes for the town it 
would provide a useful addition but due to the location and site constraints it would have several 
drawbacks: 

        Slope stability concerns on the bank and the impact on the path and road over the 
longer term; 

        Would not be DDA compliant so would not be suitable for pushchairs / wheelchairs 
and mobility impaired users. 

        It may not be adopted by the LHA, potentially leading to lack of maintenance and 
resulting problems with icing and slipping from leaf cover; 

Page 10 of 15

Page 36

Agenda Item 8



        Foot-way acting as a conduit for surface water and increased risk of water flowing 
onto the highway. 

        It would require lighting to make it attractive and safe to use at all times. 

On balance, the LHA and LLFA do not consider the footpath link to be vital and therefore we 
have no objections to the proposals to remove this condition.  However, if a footpath link can be 
provided we would engage with the LPA to help resolve the above matters." 

 
Dalton With Newton Town Council 10/10/2019  

"Dalton Town Council object to the removal of the condition. The applicant sites a too-steep 
gradient to build a footpath however DTC recognises that the footpath does not have to be a 
ramp as suitable steps would suffice if the incline is too steep.  Additionally, given that there is no 
pavement along the roadside of Hollygate Road from the point at which the footpath would join, it 
is seen as a safer option to have a footpath to link Hollygate Road and Hayeswater Drive. The 
road without a footpath is unsafe because there is no pavement and the foliage on the roadside 
is overgrown and forces pedestrians further into the road. 
 
Furthermore, the condition of the footpath was part of the original plans which were given 
consent and DTC believe that this should be enforced for the benefit of the town's residents and 
those of the development." 

  

Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 Located on the west side of Dalton, the application site site between Devoke Water Gardens 
to the south and a building contractors yard to the north. 

2.2 It was formerly occupied by a building contractor and house builder until several year ago, but 
has since been developed in two phases for residential purposes. The main vehicular access is 
from Cemetery Hill but the original approval indicated a footpath link to Hollygate Road at the 
rear of the site.  

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Removal of condition No. 16 (Footpath link to Hollygate Road) 

3. Relevant History  

 
3.1 02/1998/0560 Land between Cemetery Hill and Hollygate Road Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA158LN Residential development (Outline) Appcond 06/10/1998 
 
3.2 1979/0740 Part O.S.Field No. 1322, Adjoining Gibraltar Farm, Dalton-in-Furness Outline 
application for the erection of a bungalow Refused 10/10/1979 
 

Page 11 of 15

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



3.3 1979/0741 Part O.S.Field No. 1259, Adjoining Gibraltar Farm, Dalton-in-Furness Outline 
application for the erection of a bungalow Refused 10/10/1979 
 
3.4 1980/0693 Part O.S.Field 1259, Adjoining Gibralter Farm, Dalton-in-Furness Outline 
application for erection of a bungalow Refused 15/10/1980 
 
3.5 1984/0362 Former Blair's Factory, Cemetery Hill, Dalton-in-Furness Change of use from light 
industrial factory to workshop, offices and storage for building contractor Appcond 04/07/1984 
 
3.6 1984/0431 Former Blair's Factory, Cemetery Hill, Dalton-in-Furness Change of use of 
industrial buildings to office with ancillary car park Appcond 15/08/1984 
 
3.7 1984/0481 Former Blair's Factory, Cemetery Hill, Dalton-in-Furness Erection of new boundary 
fence to Cemetery Hill elevation, internal yard fencing and gate Approved 06/07/1984 
 
3.8 1987/0038 Anticross Industrial Estate, Cemetery Hill, Dalton-in-Furness Change of use from 
light industrial to builders merchants and caretakers flat and formation of car park Appcond 
15/04/1987 
 
3.9 1990/0879 Antycross Industrial Estate, Hollygate Road, Dalton-in-Furness Outline Planning 
Permission - Erection of a vehicle maintenance workshop Appcond 29/11/1990 
 
3.10 22/1999/0463 land between Cemetry Hill And Hollygate Road Dalton-In-Furness Cumbira 
Approval of Reserved Matters for the erection of 12 houses, 2 bungalows and associated 
infrastructure, including 7 garages, access road and car park Appcond 18/08/1999 
 
3.11 42/2005/1156 New Housing site at Builders Yard Cemetery Hill Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria 
Residential development for the erection of 20 dwellings Condition Precedent 15/10/2007 
 
3.12 50/1991/0833 F.B.M. Building Supplies, Hollygate Road, Dalton-in-Furness Installation of 
new customer access doors including ramped access Approved 19/12/1991 
 
3.13 B07/2016/0126 Hayeswater Drive Cemetery Hill Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Residential 
Development of 14 Dwellings APPCOND 13/06/2017 
 
3.14 B07/2018/0407 Hayeswater Drive Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Application to vary conditions 
2 & 15 of planning permission B07/2016/0126 (development of 13 dwellings) to allow for revised 
drainage layout APPCOND 19/06/2018 
 
3.15 B13/2009/1222 Cemetery Hill Site Cemetery Hill Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Erection of four 
semi-detached dwellings (retrospective). Appcond 22-AUG-2011 
 
3.16 B13/2013/0390 Land at Hayeswater Drive Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Application for Outline 
Planning Permission with all matters reserved for the development of six, 3 bedroom semi-
detached dwellings and one, 4 bedroom detached dwelling with direct access from existing road 
built to a adoptive specification with applica Appcond 07-AUG-2013 
 
3.17 B28/2008/0452 Cemetery Hill Site Cemetery Hill Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Submission of 
ground investigation report as required by Condition No. 2 of Planning Permission 05/1156 
DISPOSED 21-SEP-2011 

Page 12 of 15

Page 38

Agenda Item 8



 
3.18 B28/2009/0803 New Housing site at Builders Yard Cemetery Hill Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria 
Submission of 'access road' details on phase 1 of development as required by condition no. 5 of 
planning permission 2005/1156. DISPOSED 21-SEP-2011 
 
3.19 B28/2017/0435 Street Record Hayeswater Drive Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Application for 
approval of details reserved by Condition No.3 (Site Investigation), No.4 (Remediation Scheme), 
No.5 (Construction Method Statement), No.6 (Tree Protection Plan) and No.9 (Methodology for 
import of materials) for planning permission B07/2016/0126 (Residential Development of 13 
dwellings) APPCOND 30/08/2017 
 
3.20 B28/2018/0037 Hayeswater Drive Cemetery Hill Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Discharge of 
conditions No 11 (Highway construction details), No. 13 (Landscaping Scheme), No. 14 
(Exceedance Route Measures) and No. 15 (Foul and Surface Water Drainage Details and 
Phasing0 for planning permission B07/2016/0126 Residential Development of 13 Dwellings 
APPCOND 26/09/2018 

4. Officer Assessment 

4.1 Planning policies seek to encourage journeys on foot and in this context a footpath link was 
shown connecting the head of the cul de sac with Hollygate Road. However the applicant has 
applied to remove the footpath link from the approved scheme and the condition which enforced 
this part of the project. 

4.2 The County Council as local highway authority have been consulted about the 
proposed change. The County note the benefits of the link and which are described in more 
detail by the Town Council (comments reproduced in full above). However the County explain the 
problems as follows: 

"It is acknowledged that as part a wider network of footways and footpath routes for the 
town it would provide a useful addition but due to the location and site constraints it would 
have several drawbacks: 

 Slope stability concerns on the bank and the impact on the path and road over the 
longer term; Would not be DDA compliant so would not be suitable for pushchairs / 
wheelchairs and mobility impaired users. 

4.3 Footway acting as a conduit for surface water and increased risk of water flowing onto the 
highway. 

 It would require lighting to make it attractive and safe to use at all times 
 It may not be adopted by the LHA, potentially leading to lack of maintenance and resulting 

problems with icing and slipping from leaf cover; 

On balance, the LHA and LLFA do not consider the footpath link to be vital and therefore 
we have no objections to the proposals to remove this condition.   

 

Page 13 of 15

Page 39

Agenda Item 8



 

4.4 I have had further discussions with the County and it seems that the link is to be excluded 
from the adoption of the estate road and its footways. Without the support of the local highway 
authority I feel little option but to recommend that the condition be removed. 

4.5 In addition the applicant has submitted a 'Slope Stability Assessment' by Meridian 
Geoscience. This advises that forming the footway 'could lead to potential issues with long term 
stability' of the bank it would run across. Potentially this Assessment could be peer reviewed 
however this has not been pursued. 

5. Conclusions 

5.1 The footpath link could provide a convenient link between Cemetery Hill and Hollygate Road 
but doubts about such matters as the gradient which can reasonably be achieved as resulted in 
the County's design standards not being met. As a consequence it appears that the link will not 
be adopted as part of the estate road and pavements. 

6. Recommendation 
 

I recommend that the application be APPROVED and planning permission be varied with the 
omission of condition no 16. 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

   

  
  

Page 14 of 15

Page 40

Agenda Item 8



Page 15 of 15

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 8



  

 

 
 

Appendices of Saved Policies 
 

 

Note to Members 
 

 

Below are the full wordings of the policies relevant to the applications found on the 

agenda today. 
 

 

Saved Policies 
 

 

The starting point when determining applications remains the Development Plan. 

Applications must be determined in accordance with the Development Plan unless 

material considerations, including the NPPF, indicate otherwise. 
 

 

The tilted balance under paragraph 14 of the NPPF is engaged where any of the policies 

relevant to the application are out of date or where there is no 5 year housing land 

supply. At present the Council can demonstrate a supply in excess of 5 years. The 

officers report will indicate if any policies are out of date and how much weight they can 

be given. Under the tilted balance applications should be approved unless 
 

 

"any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 

benefits, when assessed against the policies as a whole, or specific policies in the 

Framework indicate development should be restricted." 
 

 

The tilted balance is not engaged where all relevant policies are in date and there is a 

sufficient supply of housing land. 
 

 

National Planning Policy Framework 2018 
 

 

NPPF-127 

Planning policies and decisions should ensure that developments: 
 

 

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term 

but over the lifetime of the development; 

 
b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and 

effective landscaping; 
 

 

c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built 

environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate 

innovation or change (such as increased densities); 
 

 

Page 42

Agenda Item 8



  

 

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, 

spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive 

places to live, work and visit; 
 

 

e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount 

and mix of development (including green and other public space) and support local 

facilities and transport networks; and 
 

 

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and 

well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users (Planning 

policies for housing should make use of the Government's optional technical standards 

for accessible and adaptable housing, where this would address an identified need for 

such properties. Policies may also make use of the nationally described space standard, 

where the need for an internal space standard can be justified); and where crime and 

disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or community 

cohesion and resilience. 

 

Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 
 

 

Policy C2 - Development and the Coast 

Development in a coastal location will only be permitted where: 
 

 

a) There will be no unacceptable harm to natural coastal processes, including increasing 

the risk of flooding, coastal erosion and instability; 
 

 

b) There will be no unacceptable harm to habitats, species, geodiversity, designated 

sites and the historic environment; 
 

 

c) The capacity of the coast to form a natural sea defence or adjust to changes in 

conditions without risk to life or property will not be prejudiced; 
 

 

d) There will not be an increased need for additional sea walls or other civil engineering 

works (defence structures) for coastal protection purposes except where necessary  

to protect existing investment; 

 

e) The open character of the undeveloped coast is maintained, with the existing 

landscape character of the site respected and reinforced; 
 

 

f) Local fisheries will not be prejudiced; 
 

 

g) There will be no unacceptable adverse effect on people's enjoyment of natural 

landscape character; and 

 

 
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 8



  

 

 

h) There will be no adverse effect on recreational activities at the coast. 
 

 

Opportunities to improve access to the coast will be sought where possible and where 

the above criteria can be met. 
 

 

Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to sustainable development 

When determining planning applications the Council will take a positive approach to 

ensure development is sustainable. The Council will work pro-actively with applicants to 

find positive solutions that allow suitable proposals for sustainable developments to be 

approved wherever possible. 
 

 

The Council is committed to seeking to enhance the quality of life for residents by taking 

an integrated approach to protect, conserve and enhance the built, natural and historic 

environment whilst ensuring access to essential services and facilities and a wider 

choice of housing. This will enable the Local Plan's Vision and Objectives to be met and 

to secure development that simultaneously achieves economic, social and 

environmental gains for the Borough. 
 

 

Planning applications that accord with the Development Plan will be approved without 

delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 

 

Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of 

date at the time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless 

material considerations indicate otherwise, taking into account whether: 
 

 

a) Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably 

outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the National Planning 

Policy Framework (or any document which replaces it)  taken as a whole; or 
 

 

b) Specific policies in the Framework (or any document which replaces it) indicate that 
development should be restricted. 

Page 44

Agenda Item 8



  

 

 
 

 

Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria 

In order to meet the objectives outlined in Policy DS1, subject to other Development 

Plan policies which may determine the suitability of particular sites, all proposals should 

meet all of the following criteria, where possible, taking into account the scale of 

development and magnitude of impact and any associated mitigation by: 
 

 

a) Ensuring that proposed development incorporates green infrastructure designed and 

integrated to enable accessibility by walking, cycling and public transport for main travel 

purposes, particularly from areas of employment and retail, leisure and education 

facilities; 
 

 

b) Ensuring development does not prejudice road safety or increase congestion at 

junctions that are identified by the Local Highway Authority as being over-capacity; 
 

 

c) Ensuring access to necessary services, facilities and infrastructure and ensuring that 

proposed development takes into account the capacity of existing or planned utilities 

infrastructure; 
 

 

d) Ensuring that the health, safety and environmental effects of noise, smell, dust, light, 

vibration, fumes or other forms of pollution or nuisance arising from the proposed 

development including from associated traffic are within acceptable levels; 
 

 

e) Respecting the residential amenity of existing and committed dwellings, particularly 

privacy, security and natural light; 
 

 

f) Protecting the health, safety or amenity of occupants or users of the proposed 

development; 
 

 

g) Contributing to the enhancement of the character, appearance and historic interest of 

related landscapes, settlements, street scenes, buildings, open spaces, trees and other 

environmental assets; 
 

 

h) Contributing to the enhancement of biodiversity and geodiversity; 
 

 

i) Ensuring that construction and demolition materials are re-used on the site if possible; 
 

 

j) Avoiding adverse impact on mineral extraction and agricultural production;

Page 45

Agenda Item 8



 

 

 
 
 
 

k) Ensuring that proposals incorporate energy and water efficiency measures (in 

accordance with the relevant Building Regulations), the use of sustainable drainage 

systems where appropriate and steers development away from areas of flood risk; 
 

 

l) Ensuring that any proposed development conserves and enhances the historic 

environment including heritage assets and their settings; and 
 

 

m) Development must comply with Policy DS3. 
 

 

Where the applicant demonstrates that one or more of the criteria cannot be met, they 

must highlight how the development will contribute towards the achievement of the Local 

Plan objectives by alternative means. 
 

 

Policy DS5 - Design 

New development must be of a high quality design, which will support the creation of 

attractive, vibrant places. Designs will be specific to the site and planning applications 

must demonstrate a clear process that analyses and responds to the characteristics of 

the site and its context, including surrounding uses, taking into account the Council's 

Green Infrastructure Strategy. Proposals must demonstrate clearly how they: 

 
a) Integrate with and where possible conserve and enhance the character of the 

adjoining natural environment, taking into account relevant Supplementary Planning 

Documents; 
 

 

b) Conserve and enhance the historic environment, including heritage assets and their 

setting; 
 

 

c) Make the most effective and efficient use of the site and any existing buildings upon it; 
 

 

d) Create clearly distinguishable, well defined and designed public and private spaces 

that are attractive, accessible, coherent and safe and provide a stimulating environment; 
 

 

e) Allow permeability and ease of movement within the site and with surrounding areas, 

placing the needs of pedestrians, cyclists and public transport above those of the 

motorist, depending on the nature and function of the uses proposed; 
 

 

f) Create a place that is easy to find your way around with routes defined by a well- 

structured building layout;

Page 46

Agenda Item 8



 

 

 
 
 
 

g) Prioritise building and landscape form over parking and roads, so that vehicular 

requirements do not dominate the sites appearance and character; 
 

 

h) Exhibit design quality using design cues and materials appropriate to the area, locally 

sourced wherever possible; 
 

 

i) Respect the distinctive character of the local landscape, protecting and incorporating 

key environmental assets of the area, including topography, landmarks, views, trees, 

hedgerows, habitats and skylines. Where no discernible or positive character exists, 

creating a meaningful hierarchy of space that combines to create a sense of place; 
 

 

j) Create layouts that are inclusive and promote health, well-being, community cohesion 

and public safety; 
 

 

k) Incorporate public art where this is appropriate to the project and where it can 

contribute to design objectives; 
 

 

l) Ensure that development is both accessible and usable by different age groups and 

people with disabilities; 
 

 

m) Integrate Sustainable Drainage Systems of an appropriate form and scale; 
 

 

n) Mitigate against the impacts of climate change by the incorporation of energy and 

water efficiency measures (in accordance with the Building Regulations), the orientation 

of new buildings, and use of recyclable materials in construction; and 
 

 

o) Ensuring that new development avoids creating nesting sites for gulls e.g. through the 

provision of appropriate roof pitches. 
 

 
 

Policy H17 - Protection of Residential Privacy 

Proposals for extensions must demonstrate through good design that an acceptable 

standard of privacy can be maintained between opposing and neighbouring properties. 

Principal windows in the side elevations of habitable rooms at upper floor levels should 

be avoided where the privacy of neighbouring occupiers will be compromised. Where 

privacy is to be protected by distance alone, a minimum of 21 metres will be required 

between the facing windows of habitable rooms of opposing homes. Exceptions may be 

made for the facing windows of ground floor habitable rooms where adequate screening

Page 47

Agenda Item 8



 

 

 

 
exists and in cases where normal standards of separation cannot be achieved and 

existing standards will not be eroded by accepting distances of less than 21 metres. In 

all situations the use of obscure glazing in the principal windows of habitable rooms will 

not be an acceptable measure to overcome the provisions of this policy as this is 

deemed to provide a sub-standard level of accommodation. 
 

 

Habitable areas are defined as living rooms, bedrooms, studies, dining rooms, and 

kitchens with dining areas. 
 
 

Policy H25 - Design of Patio areas and Balconies 

The creation of patio areas and balconies over house extensions will be approved 

providing they are of good design and do not represent an unacceptable loss of privacy 

to the occupiers of neighbouring properties or occupy a prominent position such that a 

detrimental intrusion into the character of the streetscene would be created. 

Page 48

Agenda Item 8



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

29th  October 2019 
 

 

INDEX 
 

 
 
 

Page Reference  Address Proposal  

2 2019/0540 11 Sun Street, Ireleth, 
Askam-in-Furness 
 

Installation of a raised patio to adjacent opening to 
lounge. 
 

9 2019/0594 Hayeswater Drive 
Dalton-in-Furness  

Removal of condition No. 16 (Footpath Link to 
Hollygate Road) of planning permission 2016/0126   
 

 

Page 49

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 
 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

     29th October 2019 

 

DEFERRED BOOKLET   
 

 

PLANNING APPLICATION FOR DECISION 
 

2019/0566, deferred from meeting 1st October 2019 

2019/0483 and 2019/0356, deferred from meeting 10th September 2019 
 

 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 
 

The applications within this report have been submitted for determination under 
the Town and Country Planning Acts and associated legislation. 

 
All applications in this report are “Delegated” to this Committee but can be moved 

“Non-Delegated” by a Member of the Committee under the terms adopted for the 
Scheme of Delegation approved by Council, 16th May, 1994. Any such motion needs to 
be accepted by a majority of Members of the Committee present (Council, 8th August, 
1995). All applications left as Delegated will be decided by the Committee and will not 
be subject to confirmation by Council. 

 
The application plan numbers also refer to files for the purposes of background 

papers. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Jason Hipkiss 
 

Planning Manager 

Page 1 of 45

Page 51

Agenda Item 9



B18/2019/0566 
Planning Committee  

29
th 

October 2019  

  

  

Application Number : B18/2019/0566 Date Valid :31/07/2019 

Address : Chapel Hills Smallholding Oak 
Lea Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 
4QW 

Case Officer : Barry Jesson 

Proposal : Application for an extension to agricultural building to provide welfare facilities 
and storage 

Ward : Hawcoat Ward Parish : Askam and Ireleth Parish Council 

Applicant : Mr James Mark   Agent : Mr Greg Gilding NWA Architectural  

Statutory Date : 25/09/2019 
Recommendation : Approved with 
conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 
 
National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-083 
2. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-127 
3. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-170 

Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to 
sustainable development 

2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development 
Criteria 

3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 

Summary of Main Issues 

The extension provides required welfare facilities, for which a level of need has been 
identified in a previous assessment/application.  The design and appearance is more 
appropriate than the existing chalet which was refused consent and would help tidy the site 
following its removal. 

 

Page 2 of 45

Page 52

Agenda Item 9



Non Material Considerations 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Oak Lea Road Oak Lea Cottage, Oak Lea Farm, Oak Lea Riding School, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

1 0 1 0 

Summary of objection  

No justification for permanent facilities; proposal site is an isolated field; extension is 
excessive in size for stated need and concern it will be used as a permanent dwelling; no 
site services rendering site unfit for habitation; excessive noise at night; no enforcement 
action taken following previous refusal; unauthorised installation of septic tank. 

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Askam and Ireleth Parish Council 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
   

List of Organisation Responses 

Askam and Ireleth Parish Council  05/08/2019  

"No comments from Askam and Ireleth Parish Council."  

  

Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The agricultural holding is located on Oak Lea Road, directly to the east of Oak Lea 
Stables. The existing farm building is located close to the boundary with Oak Lea Road, 
with a dividing hedgerow in between. An unauthorised chalet remains in-situ, located to the 
east of the main farm building. The farm is accessed directly from Oak Lea Road; 
previously the access was secondary in nature, but following a change in ownership the 
then primary vehicular access to the north is no longer within the applicants control. The 
surrounding area is of rural open character; sporadic farm development is visible, with Oak 
Lea Farm approximately 100m to the south.  A Public Right of Way runs to the south and 
west of the site. 

Page 3 of 45

Page 53

Agenda Item 9



2. Proposal Details 

Application for an extension to agricultural building to provide welfare facilities and storage 

3. Relevant History 

3.1 57/2004/1341 Field to the north of Oak Lea Farm Oak Lea Road Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria Erection of a stable Appcond 18/01/2005 
 
3.2 B18/2009/1550 Field North of Oak Lea Farm Oak Lea Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 
Erection of a steel framed building for housing of sheep, feed and tack storage. Appcond 
04-MAR-2010 
 
3.3 B18/2017/0465 Agricultural Building, Oak Lea Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 
Extension to existing agricultural building (Retrospective) APPCOND 10/10/2017 
 
3.4 BIN/2018/0377 Chapel Hills Smallholding Oak Lea Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA14 4QW Extension of agricultural building for implement and equipment storage INVALID 
19/10/2018 
 
3.5 BIN/2018/0634 Land adjacent to Chapel Hills Smallholding Oak Lea Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA14 4QW Retention of chalet building on agricultural land for use as a 
rest room, eating area, wc provision and occasional sleeping over when animals are ill or 
lambing/calving INVALID 16/10/2018 

4. Officer Assessment 

4.1 The new local plan does not include specific policies regarding farm buildings though it 
has a policy on farm diversification. DS2 & DS5, whilst relating to development proposals 
generally, do not specifically address farm buildings, instead focusing on ensuring that any 
landscape impact from development is minimised.  Typically this is achieved by avoiding 
the introduction of isolated buildings and reducing the prominence of rural structures by the 
use of appropriate, and/or suitably coloured materials. 

4.2 In 2018, two applications were submitted for the site, one to extend the agricultural 
building and a second to site a static caravan for the applicants day to day welfare needs.  
The extension was approved, though the caravan was refused as it was considered to be 
excessive in size for the day to day needs (having 2 bedrooms) and had a negative impact 
on the local landscape due to its scale and prominence, stemming from the white 
colouring.  An appraisal of need was commissioned by the Council (Appendix A) during 
the processing of those applications; whilst establishing the caravan was excessive in size 
it did acknowledge that there was some need for day to day facilities and occasional 
'overnighting' during lambing season.  Such need has been outlined by the applicant in this 
submission.  It is not contested that there is a need for small scale welfare facilities.  

 

 

Page 4 of 45

Page 54

Agenda Item 9



 

4.3 Whilst these are often provided by 'chattels' there is nothing preventing the provision via 
extensions such as this.  This approach has the benefit of better assimilating with the 
building and the landscape provided the design is acceptable.  It also prevents a more 
cluttered appearance which can result from smaller caravans, and indeed the larger 
caravan currently in situ.  To this end, the extension, located on the eastern side of the 
building, continues the existing roof profile and uses a matching profiled metal sheeting in a 
dark green colour.  This has minimal impact on the landscape and maintains the existing 
grouping. 

4.4 Concerns regarding the permanent occupation can be addressed by a planning 
condition.  Given the reduced size, following amendment, such concern should already be 
reduced.  Furthermore, it can be made a condition of any consent that prior to beneficial 
use of the extension the static caravan is removed from site.  This would improve the sites 
appearance but also prevent a gap in welfare provision for the applicant.  

4.5 With regard to the drainage, it is stated an existing septic tank will be used.  The 
objection letter states this was installed in 2018 and is unauthorised.  However, an 
application for an earlier extension in 2017 makes reference to foul drainage being via a 
septic tank.   

5. Conclusions 

5.1 The NPPF promotes the supporting of rural businesses to create a prosperous rural 
economy.  The extension, as amended, is considered to be appropriate in terms of scale 
and appearance, preventing any additional landscape harm.  The need for the 
accommodation has been demonstrated previously as the applicant's farming operation 
continues to expand at this and other sites.  Sufficient control exists via condition to ensure 
the use remains as applied for and no permanent occupancy of the extension results.   

6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the Standard Duration 
Limit and the following conditions : - 

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning 
with the date of this permission. 
 
Reason 
 
Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
 

 

 

Page 5 of 45

Page 55

Agenda Item 9



Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in accordance with 
the application dated 26/07/19 and the hereby approved documents defined by this 
permission as listed below, except where varied by conditions attached to this consent. 
 
WOL 01 rev A 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved 
by the Planning Authority. 
 
Pre-commencement Conditions 
 
No conditions of this type 
 
During Building Works 
 
3. The exterior of the cladding shall be the shade of dark green defined by BS4800 12B29 
and which shall be incorporated into the material during its manufacture. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure the development is visually sensitive to its rural context and to ensure the colour 
is permanent as opposed to a more temporary painted finish. 
 
Before Occupation 
 
4. Prior to any beneficial use of the extension hereby approved, occupation of the static 
caravan located to the east of the building shall cease and the caravan removed from the 
site. 
 
Reason 
 
The presence of the caravan, which does not benefit from any formal permission, results in 
landscape harm. It should no longer be required following the construction of the extension. 
 
Operational Conditions 
 
5. The extension hereby approved must only be used for the day to day staff welfare 
requirements associated with the farming operation, such as lunch and rest breaks. Any 
limited use for overnight/sleeping accommodation must only be in connection with seasonal 
farming operations which require the continuous presence of a worker, e.g. during lambing 
season, and must not be used for permanent residential occupation. 
 
 

 

Page 6 of 45

Page 56

Agenda Item 9



Reason 
 
No evidence or justification has been provided to demonstrate the need for an agricultural 
workers dwelling. 
 
6. Where the use of the extension for the purposes of agriculture within the unit 
permanently ceases within 10 years of the date that it is substantially completed, and 
planning permission has not been granted for an alternative use, then it shall be removed 
from the site, and the land reinstated in accordance with a scheme that shall be subject to 
prior written agreement with the Planning Authority, within 6 months of the date the 
agricultural use permanently ceases. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure the building is removed if it is no longer required for the purposes of agriculture 
on the holding in recognition of the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside. 
 
Informative 
  

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out 

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed. 

   

 
 

  

  

  

Page 7 of 45

Page 57

Agenda Item 9



2019/0566

Page 8 of 45

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 9



 
            Part  

PLANNING COMMITTEE  
(D/R) 

Date of Meeting: 29th October 2019 

Reporting Officer:  

Development Services Manager  

(Planning & Enforcement)    
 

Title:      B18/2019/0483 Submission by Windcluster to modify the 
Unilateral Undertaking dated 13th January 2003 (Section 
106) to permit the continued operation of the wind farm 
for a further 10 years expiring August 2029.  

 
Summary and Conclusions:  
The submission was deferred at you last committee with Members requesting 
further investigation works relating to noise. Legal opinion was sought as to 
whether the submission should be handled under s73 of the Planning Act or  
under s106A.  
The latter applies hence this update is formatted as a topic report. 
 
 
Recommendations:   
 
That the section 106 Obligation be modified as submitted. 
 
 
 
 
Report 
 

1. Background 
 
This application was considered at your September meeting when Members 
deferred a decision to enable further assessment of the noise environment. 
There appears to have been some confusion as to the manner in which the 
Authority should process the submission. In the report the case officer 
advised that: 
 
‘This application seeks to amend a 106 obligation, a relatively rare form of 
submission, but which have been a result of several relatively recent 
legislative amendments as government seeks to make the Planning system 
more flexible” 
 

Page 9 of 45

Page 59

Agenda Item 9



These recent changes (section 106A of the Act) have enabled older s106 
agreements to be revisited to ascertain if they are still relevant. The test is 
whether it continues to serve a “useful purpose”, (importantly, the courts have 
established that this is not just a “planning” purpose) or whether it could 
continue to serve this purpose in a modified form.  Whilst this exercise is 
broader than a planning application, and does not bring in the full range of 
planning considerations, it is reasonable that a Planning Authority should 
have some regard to local policies in reaching its conclusion. This is where I 
believe that the confusion has arisen. 
 
 

2. Legal Opinion 
 
Following the Committee’s resolution, legal opinion was sought to ensure that 
the correct approach is adopted in determining the application. The following 
was received; 
 
The legislation on amending 106 obligations states as follows 
1. S.106A of the 1990 Act so far as relevant states: 
 
“(6) Where an application is made to an authority under subsection (3), the 
authority may determine— 
(a) that the planning obligation shall continue to have effect without 
modification; 
(b) if the obligation no longer serves a useful purpose, that it shall be 
discharged; or 
(c) if the obligation continues to serve a useful purpose, but would serve that 
purpose equally well if it had effect subject to the modifications specified in the 
application, that it shall have effect subject to those modifications.” 
 
The legal opinion draws upon several legal precedents from cases elsewhere 
and advises as follows: 
 
‘Noise may be a consideration to which the Council should have regard when 
determining the application. However, it is important that the Council do not 
approach the determination of the application as if it were a s.73 application [a 
variation of condition application] because it is not. Instead the Council must 
approach the application by considering the following four questions, the 
answers to which will indicate whether noise is a factor to have regard to: 
 
a. what is the current obligation?  
b. what purpose does it fulfil?  
c. is it a useful purpose?  
d. if so, would the obligation serve that purpose equally well if it had effect 
subject to the proposed modifications?’ 

Page 10 of 45

Page 60

Agenda Item 9



 
 

3. Updated Assessment 
 
Applying this approach to the submission: 
 
The legal opinion confirms that the legislation requires that this should not be 
dealt with in the same manner as a planning application. For example there is 
no statutory requirement for publicity or consultation, as it is considered that 
the exercise is one of a legal rather than a Planning process.  
 
The purpose of the undertaking was to secure compliance with the planning 
conditions attached to the original planning permission for the wind turbines. 
Those conditions controlled various aspects of the development. This 
included obligation no 1 which limited the life of the development to 20 years 
thereafter the turbines had to be removed and the land reinstated. 
 
It is only this one obligation to which the application relates to. The purpose of 
the original condition was to ensure that the turbines did not remain beyond 
their (then anticipated) operational life. Were the 106 to be modified as 
applied for, i.e. extending the life for a further 10 years, it would serve this 
purpose equally well. This is because the applicant has shown that the 
development is capable of operating for that longer period of time. 
The application does not seek to alter the 106 obligation with respect to noise 
limits (obligation no 3). Therefore it follows that were the s106 to be modified it 
would continue to serve this purpose equally well compared to the original 
s106 as the noise requirements remain unchanged. 
 

4. Conclusion 
 
Based upon the Councils legal opinion that has been obtained, consideration 
of the submission by this committee needs to be limited to whether the 
agreement fulfils a “useful purpose” and if it does whether the modified 
agreement would fulfil that useful purpose “equally well”.  
 
The focus of the application is extending the life of the development for a 
further 10 years. In this respect, the applicant has stated the ability to achieve 
this through suitable maintenance regimes of its equipment thus ensuring the 
continued generation of “green” energy beyond the previous 20 year lifetime. 
 
Although this submission is not a planning application, the applicant has the 
right of appeal against any refusal. In this respect it is unlikely that a suitable 
defence of a refusal could be mounted, taking into account the evidence 
submitted and the legal advice obtained.  
Residents have objected on the basis of noise from the turbines. Any 
consideration of noise issues should be outwith of the current determination. 
They should not play any part in the consideration of the submission, which is 
solely to extend the operational life of the wind farm.  
 

Page 11 of 45

Page 61

Agenda Item 9



Members and residents can be assured that compliance with the noise 
condition can be checked as a separate exercise and mitigation or 
enforcement actions taken through the Planning or other environmental 
legislation as appropriate. Responses from the Borough Public Protection 
officers indicates that the wind farm operator has engaged diligently with them 
to identify and mitigate any noise issues, and have invested in updated 
software to control the turbines when complaints have been received. 
 

5. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that the 106 obligation be modified in accordance with the 
submission so that decommissioning occurs no later than August 2029. 
 
 
(i) Legal Implications 
 
The legal opinion obtained by the Authority confirms that the submission 
should be dealt with under s106A and not via section 73 of the Act as a 
variation of a planning application. Mishandling the submission could lead to 
legal action against the Council. 
 
 
(ii) Risk Assessment 
 
The recommendation has no significant implications. 
 
(iii) Financial Implications 
 
There is a likely cost for external assistance in defending any Appeal. 
 
(iv) Health and Safety Implications 
 
The recommendation has no implications. 
 
(v) Equality and Diversity 
 
The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation. 
 
 
(vi) Health and Well-being Implications 
 
The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service. 
 

Page 12 of 45

Page 62

Agenda Item 9



 
Background Papers 
 
Report to Planning Committee 10th September 2019 
 
 
Report Author 
 
J Hipkiss 

Page 13 of 45

Page 63

Agenda Item 9



B18/2019/0356 
Planning Committee 
29

th
 October 2019   

  

  

Application Number : B18/2019/0356 Date Valid :28/05/2019 

Address : Over-spill car park to rear of 
Clarkes Arms, Rampside, Barrow-in-
Furness, Cumbria, LA13 0PX 

Case Officer : Jennifer Dickinson 

Proposal : Erection of a detached 2 storey three bedroom dwelling. 

Ward : Roosecote Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Mr A Davies   
Agent : Mr A Osborne, Osborne 
Architectural Design Ltd  

Statutory Date : 23/07/2019 
Recommendation : Granted with 
conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 – Paragraph 11 
2. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 – Paragraph 127 

Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to 
sustainable development 

2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development 
Criteria 

3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H17 - Protection of Residential 

Privacy 
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H7 - Housing Development on 

Windfall Sites 
6. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy HE3 - Listed Buildings 
7. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy N3 - Protecting biodiversity and 

geodiversity 
8. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy N4 - Protecting other wildlife features 

Page 14 of 45

Page 64

Agenda Item 9



Summary of Main Issues 

Concern has been raised over the impact on adjacent properties from the development 
which has triggered the need for consideration by committee.  The plans have been 
amended to assist in reducing the perceived potential impact. 

Non Material Considerations 

Private access arrangements 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Bow Windows Avenue 1, 10, 12, 16, 18, 2, 20, 22, 24, 26, 28, 3, 30, 32, 4, 5, 6, 8, 
Hall Garth 1, 3, 5, 7, 9, Gate House, 
Rampside Calm Seas, Clarkes Arms, Overton House, The Nook, 

Site notice displayed expiring on 26.6.19 
  

Responses Support Object Neutral 

3 1 1 1 

Summary of responses: 

- concern raised over impact on light and privacy on adjacent barn conversion 

- concern over access for barn conversions 

- additional support for wildlife survey findings 

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Contamination) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services) 
Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 
Cumbria County Council (PROW) 
Natural England 
United Utilities (Asset Protection) 

Page 15 of 45

Page 65

Agenda Item 9



List of Organisation Responses 

 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 29/05/2019  

“Building regulation approval required for the proposals”. 

 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Contamination) 19/06/2019  

“Thank you for the above consultation. Although our records suggest the site is low risk for 
land contamination, I would request that a desk top study is undertaken given the nature of 
the proposed development. 

I understand that the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) seeks to prevent 
unacceptable risk from land contamination and instability (Policy 178 and 179). 

Policy 179 states that where a site is affected by contamination or land instability 
issues, responsibility for securing a safe development rests with the developer and/or 
land owner. Section 14 (Existing Use) on the Application for Planning Permission also 
asks if the development would be particularly vulnerable to the presence of 
contamination and if so, an appropriate contamination assessment should be 
submitted.  

In the absence of a contamination assessment, I would recommend that conditions are 
imposed on any Planning Consent granted, based on the following: ascertain 

1. No development shall take place until a Preliminary Investigation (desk study, site 
reconnaissance and preliminary risk assessment), to investigate and assess the risk 
of potential contamination, is submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. This investigation must be undertaken by a suitably qualified 
contaminated land practitioner, in accordance with established procedures (BS10175 
(2011) Code of Practice for the Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites and 
Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination  (CLR11)) 

If you require any further clarification in this matter, please don't hesitate to contact me.” 

 

Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 31/05/2019 

"Spirit Energy is covered by the provision of the COMAH 2015 Regulations. There are no 
objections to the proposed development but it should be noted that the proposed 
development is situated within the Public Information Zone of the site and in liaison with the 
site operator and in liaison with the HSE special arrangements are made for 
residents/business premises in this area and particular attention is paid to ensuring that 
people are aware of the appropriate action to take in the event of an incident at the site. 

Page 16 of 45

Page 66

Agenda Item 9



 

Accordingly I would be grateful if you could, in the event of the application being approved, 
advise the applicant to liaise with this office  to allow for further discussion." 

 
Cumbria County Council 07/06/2019  

"Cumbria County Council as the Highways Authority and the Lead Local Flood Authority 
(LLFA) has reviewed the above planning reference and our findings are detailed below.  

I can confirm that the Highways and Lead Local Flood Authority have no objection to the 
proposal subject to the following conditions recommended to be added to any notice of 
consent wish may be issued: 

1.     The proposed highway fence/wall boundary shall be reduced to a height not 
exceeding 1.05m above the carriageway level of the adjacent highway in accordance 
with details submitted to the Local Planning Authority and which have subsequently 
been approved and shall not be raised to a height exceeding 1.05m thereafter. 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety." 

 

Natural England 03/06/2019 

 
"Thank you for your consultation on the above dated 29 May 2019 which was received by 
Natural England on 29 May 2019. 

Natural England is a non-departmental public body. Our statutory purpose is to ensure that 
the natural environment is conserved, enhanced, and managed for the benefit of present 
and future generations, thereby contributing to sustainable development. 

SUMMARY OF NATURAL ENGLAND’S ADVICE 

NO OBJECTION 
 
Based on the plans submitted, Natural England considers that the proposed development 
will not have significant adverse impacts on statutorily protected nature conservation sites or 
landscapes. 

Natural England’s generic advice on other natural environment issues is set out at Annex A. 

 

 

 

Page 17 of 45

Page 67

Agenda Item 9



European sites 
 
Based on the plans submitted, Natural England considers that the proposed development 
will not have likely significant effects on statutorily protected sites and has no objection to 
the proposed development. To meet the requirements of the Habitats Regulations, we 
advise you to record your decision that a likely significant effect can be ruled out. 

Sites of Special Scientific Interest 
 
Based on the plans submitted, Natural England considers that the proposed development 
will not have likely significant effects on statutorily protected sites and has no objection to 
the proposed development. 

Sites of Special Scientific Interest Impact Risk Zones 
 
The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 
2015 requires local planning authorities to consult Natural England on “Development in or 
likely to affect a Site of Special Scientific Interest” (Schedule 4, w). Our SSSI Impact Risk 
Zones are a GIS dataset designed to be used during the planning application validation 
process to help local planning authorities decide when to consult Natural England on 
developments likely to affect a SSSI. The dataset and user guidance can be accessed from 
the data.gov.uk website 

Further general advice on the consideration of protected species and other natural 
environment issues is provided at Annex A. 

We would be happy to comment further should the need arise but if in the meantime you 
have any queries please do not hesitate to contact us. 

For any queries regarding this letter, for new consultations, or to provide further information 
on this consultation please send your correspondences to 
consultations@naturalengland.org.uk." 

 

United Utilities 03/06/2019  

“With reference to the above planning application, United Utilities wishes to draw attention to 
the following as a means to facilitate sustainable development within the region. 

Drainage 

In  accordance  with  the  National  Planning  Policy  Framework  (NPPF)  and  the National 
Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG), the site should be drained on a separate system with 
foul water draining to the public sewer and surface water draining in the most sustainable 
way. 

 

Page 18 of 45

Page 68

Agenda Item 9



 

The NPPG clearly outlines the hierarchy to be investigated by the developer when 
considering a surface water drainage strategy. We would ask the developer to consider the 
following drainage options in the following order of priority: 

   1. into the ground (infiltration); 

   2. to a surface water body; 

   3. to a surface water sewer, highway drain, or another drainage system; 

   4. to a combined sewer. 

We recommend the applicant implements the scheme in accordance with the surface water 
drainage hierarchy outlined above. 

If the applicant intends to offer wastewater assets forward for adoption by United Utilities, 
the proposed detailed design will be subject to a technical appraisal by an Adoptions 
Engineer as we need to be sure that the proposal meets the requirements of Sewers for 
adoption and United Utilities’ Asset Standards. The proposed design should give 
consideration to long term operability and give United Utilities a cost effective proposal for 
the life of the assets. Therefore, should this application be approved and the applicant 
wishes to progress a Section 104 agreement, we strongly recommend that no construction 
commences until the detailed drainage design, submitted as part of the Section 104 
agreement, has been assessed and accepted in writing by United Utilities. Any works 
carried out prior to the technical assessment being approved is done entirely at the 
developers own risk and could be subject to change. 

Details of both our S106 sewer connections and S104 sewer adoptions processes (including 
application forms) can be found on our website http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders- 
developers.aspx 

Please note we are not responsible for advising on rates of discharge to the local 
watercourse system.   This is  a  matter for you to discuss with the Lead Local Flood 
Authority and /  or the Environment Agency if the watercourse is classified as main river. 

Water supply 

If the applicant intends to obtain a water supply from United Utilities for the proposed 
development, we strongly recommend they engage with us at the earliest opportunity. If 
reinforcement of the water network is required to meet the demand, this could be a 
significant project which should be accounted for in the project timeline for design and 
construction. 

To discuss a potential water supply or any of the water comments detailed above, the 
applicant can contact the team at  DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk. 

 

Page 19 of 45

Page 69

Agenda Item 9



Please  note,  all  internal  pipework  must  comply  with  current  Water  Supply (water 
fittings) Regulations 1999. 

United Utilities’ property, assets and infrastructure 

Where United Utilities’ assets exist, the level of cover to the water mains and public sewers 
must not be compromised either during or after construction. 

For advice regarding protection of United Utilities’ assets, the applicant should contact the 
teams as follows: 
 
Water assets – DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk 
 
Wastewater assets – WastewaterDeveloperServices@uuplc.co.uk 

It  is  the  applicant's responsibility  to  investigate  the  possibility  of  any United 
 Utilities’  assets potentially impacted by their proposals and to demonstrate the 
exact relationship between any United Utilities' assets and the proposed 
development. 

A number of providers offer a paid for mapping service including United Utilities. To find out 
how to purchase a sewer and water plan from United Utilities, please visit the Property 
Searches website; https://www.unitedutilities.com/property-searches/. You can also view the 
plans for free. To make an  appointment to  view our sewer records at  your local authority 
please contact them direct, alternatively if you wish to view the water and the sewer records 
at our Lingley Mere offices based in Warrington please ring  0370 751 0101 to book an 
appointment. 

Due to the public sewer transfer in 2011, not all sewers are currently shown on the statutory 
sewer records and we do not always show private pipes on our plans. If a sewer is 
discovered during construction; please contact a Building Control Body to discuss the matter 
further. 

For any further information regarding Developer Services and Planning, please visit our 
website at http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders-developers.aspx."  

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

Officers Report 
 
Following the deferral of this application from your meeting on 10th September, the Council 

has now received an additional Arboricultural report, as requested by members. 

This report concludes that the tree proposed to be removed is classified as category ‘U’ due 

to its hollow trunk from ground level up and because its health is displaying signs of very low 

vigour.  This agrees with the professional Arboricultural report submitted originally with the 

application.  Both reports conclude that from an arboricultural perspective, the removal of 

the tree to accommodate the development proposed is acceptable. 

Page 20 of 45

Page 70

Agenda Item 9



Following the agreement by both professionals that it is acceptable to remove the tree 

identified as T1, a replacement tree has now been added to the proposed plans of a suitable 

species and position as recommended by the Council’s consultant.  Please see the attached 

plan. 

My original report follows on:   

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 Rampside is a coastal area of the Barrow Borough set towards the south eastern 
boundary and accessed via the A5087. The site is an area of hardstanding and planting set 
to the north of the Clarkes Hotel which includes trees subject to a Tree Preservation Order.  
It has previously been used for overflow car parking for the hotel.  Adjacent to the site is a 
barn conversion which has been developed into three dwellings and opposite the site is 
modern housing.    

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Erection of a detached 2 storey three bedroom dwelling.  The approximate footprint of 
the dwelling is 11.9m x 8.45m set 4m from the boundary wall of the adjacent barn 
conversion and 21m opposite the modern properties opposite.  The proposed property is 
modern in appearance with an offset ridge roof design.  

3. Relevant History 

 
3.1 42/2000/0066 Land to the side and rear of Clarkes Hotel Rampside Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria Three storey hotel expansion, providing twenty-one guest bedrooms, 
erection of five pairs of semi- detached houses, erection of a two storey block containing 
eight flats, conversion of barns to four dwellings, together with new access road and parking 
Refused 14/06/2000 
 
3.2 42/2000/0524 Land to the side and rear of Clarkes Arms Rampside Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria LA13 0PX Resubmission of application 2000/0066 for a reduced hotel extension, 
erection of 5 pairs of semi-detached houses, erection of a two storey block containing 8 
flats, conversion of barns to 4 dwellings erection of garages and new access road and 
parking f Appcond 11/10/2000 
 
3.3 42/2002/0005 Land to side and rear of Clarkes Arms Rampside Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria LA13 0PX Amendment to application No. 00/0524 to allow modified elevation and 
modest internal layout changes to the approved barn conversions Approved 18/02/2002 
 
3.4 57/2004/0116 Clarkes Hotel Rampside Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA13 0PX 
Replacement of external fire escape stairs including 2 new doorways at 1st and 2nd floor 
APPCOND 24/03/2004 
 
3.5 B16/2009/0090 Clarkes Arms Rampside Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA13 0PX 
Extension to rear to form additional bedrooms Appcond 18-MAY-2009 

 

Page 21 of 45

Page 71

Agenda Item 9



 
3.6 B18/2008/0478 The Clarkes Hotel Rampside Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA13 0PX 
Erection of a smoking shelter (retrospective) Refused 11/06/2008 

4. Officer Assessment 

National Policies 

4.1 National planning policy has a presumption in favour of sustainable development whilst 
placing importance on the amenity of existing and future occupiers of land and buildings. 

Local Policies 

4.2 Policies DS1 and DS2 follow on from the national presumption in favour of sustainable 
development.  DS5 places importance on good design and H7 is the most relevant policy for 
this proposal which is entitled 'Housing Development on Windfall Sites'.  This sets out 
criteria that should be satisfied for developments to be considered acceptable.  The key 
criteria for consideration in this application is (m) which states: 

"There would be no unacceptable effects on the amenities and living conditions 
of surrounding properties from overlooking, loss of light, the overbearing nature of 
the proposal or an unacceptable increase in on-street parking". 

4.3 The initial house position was set 3m from the rear boundary with the adjacent property 
and less than 21m from those opposite.  Following discussions with the agent, this position 
has now been revised to 4m from the rear boundary and now 21m from the properties 
opposite which has improved the relationship with the neighbouring properties.  The careful 
design of the proposed property with an offset ridge height and single storey eaves adjacent 
to the affected neighbour assists in ensuring there should be minimal impact from the 
proposal and reduces any perceived overbearing.  Whilst the proposed property will 
introduce a different visual appearance to the currently vacant site, the orientation of the 
host site in relation to the neighbour ensures there should be minimal impact on sunlight.  
The angle of the roof in relation to the facing ground floor windows and details of the ground 
levels provided should ensure there is no impact on the daylight of the neighbour.  Privacy is 
protected through distance to the front and rear of the proposed property.  The 
elevation facing the adjacent barn conversion is blank with only roof lights above head 
height and the elevation to the east facing properties opposite contains only a window to a 
staircase.  This is considered sufficient to protect privacy.  The proposal is therefore 
considered to accord with policy H7. 

4.4 The existing site is part of a wider plot of land which has been developed historically and 
introduced the barn conversions adjacent to the site and the residential properties opposite.  
Historically, it has been used as an overflow car park for the hotel.  Sufficient parking for the 
hotel in a similar form is available to the east of the application site accessed from Bow 
Windows Avenue.  No objection to the development has been received from 
Cumbria Highways. 

 

Page 22 of 45

Page 72

Agenda Item 9



Design and Visual Amenity 

4.5 The property design is modern in appearance and uses materials similar to the 
properties opposite.  The revised position on the site still allows for a set back from the side 
boundary into Bow Windows Avenue and this assists in assimilating the property into the 
wider street scene.  The revised layout has allowed for a more spacious feel between the 
existing barn conversions and the proposed property and the increased set back from the 
northern boundary and should ensure it fits well with the mixed character of the locality. 

Trees 

4.6 The trees on site are subject to a Tree Preservation Order (1998 No. 5). Submitted with 
the supporting documentation for the application is an Arboricultural report, Tree Survey and 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment.  This concludes that two of the trees, which are 
positioned to the south east of the site, are category C trees and worthy of retention.  It also 
identifies one tree positioned to the north east of the site as category U, which is of poor 
quality with a life expectancy of less than 10 years, it is therefore shown as being removed.  
The proposal is designed around this information and the report provides details of tree 
protection measures and root protection areas that are to be taken account of during 
construction, which can be conditioned accordingly. 

Drainage 

4.7 The agent has submitted a drainage strategy which includes consideration of sustainable 
drainage solutions.  No objection has been received from the Lead Local Flood Authority.    

Ecology 

4.8 An Ecological Survey of the site has been submitted with the application which covers a 
larger area than the site edged red on the location plan submitted.  This concludes that 
whilst the site falls within a SSSI impact zone, the proposed development and proximity to 
connected habitat features leads them to conclude there is very little risk to valuable 
habitats or wild species.  The old sycamore trees on site do have multiple holes which could 
be used by bats.  A bat survey has also now been submitted by the agent and this has 
concluded that there is no evidence of bats or owls using the trees.  

4.9 The grassy bankings on the site could also be used by reptiles, with common lizard being 
the primary concern.  Following the recommendation in the Ecological Survey the agent has 
now submitted a detailed reptile survey, and this concludes that there is no evidence of 
reptiles on site.  No further survey work should be necessary on site the submitted 
information is considered satisfactory. 

Habitats Regulations Assessment 

4.10 The site is approximately 100m from Morecambe Bay Special Area of Conservation 
(SAC), Special Protection Area (SPA) and a RAMSAR site and as such it is necessary for 
the Authority to screen the potential for adverse impacts on these Natura 2000 sites.  The 
development is not considered likely to have a significant impact on these sites and this is 
supported by both Natural England in their response and the Ecological Survey. 

Page 23 of 45

Page 73

Agenda Item 9



Listed Building 

4.11 Due to the site being within proximity to the Listed Bow Windows farmhouse, a 
Statement of Significance has been submitted.  Taking into account the fact that this area of 
Bow Windows Farm has seen significant new build residential development 
immediately adjacent to the site, and conversion of the barns, there is considered to be a 
neutral impact on the setting of the Listed Building. 

Contamination 

4.12 A condition was initially suggested by colleagues in Public Protection which related to 
contamination on site.  The agent has now submitted a phase 1 desk study which our 
colleagues in Public Protection have accepted as sufficient and the condition is not now 
necessary.  

5. Conclusions 

5.1 Taking into account the revised property position, the proposal is considered to accord 
with both local and national policies and have a minimal impact on residential and visual 
amenities.  The proposal is therefore considered to be sustainable development. 

6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the Standard Duration Limit 
and the following conditions : - 

Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in accordance with 
the application dated as valid on 28/05/2019 and the hereby approved documents defined 
by this permission as listed below, except where varied by a condition attached to this 
consent: 
 
164, 164.01, 164.02 rev.A, 164.03 rev. A, 164.04 rev.C, 164.05 
Design and Access Statement received 7.5.19 
Arboricultural Report, Tree Survey and Arboricultural Impact Assessment dated 10.4.19 
Preliminary Ecological Assessment dated 20.5.19 including Appendix 1 - Bat Report and 
Appendix 2 - Reptile Report 

Phase 1 Desk Study dated August 2019 prepared by Meridian Geoscience, in particular the 
recommendations included in paragraphs 4.2.2 and 4.2.3 of the report. 

 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved 
by the Planning Authority. 

 

Page 24 of 45

Page 74

Agenda Item 9



 
3. Unless the Planning Authority gives prior written agreement that it is impractical to do so, 
all drainage must be on the separate system with all foul drainage connected to the foul 
sewers and only uncontaminated surface water connected to the surface water system. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to ensure that the site is adequately drained and in order to control the potential for 
pollution of the water environment. 
 
Pre-commencement Conditions 
 
4. Prior to the commencement of any development, the following measures must be met to 
safeguard the trees that are present on site/subject to Tree Preservation Order 1998 No. 5; 
 
a) Fencing in accordance with the Arboricultural Impact Assessment dated 10.4.19 must be 
erected around each tree or group of trees. 
 
b) No excavations, site works, trenches, channels, pipes, services, temporary buildings 
used in connection with the development or areas for the deposit of soil or waste or for 
storage of construction materials, equipment or fuel shall be sited within either the crown 
spread of any tree or within the root protection area of the trees as shown on the approved 
plans without the prior express consent of the Planning Authority. 
 
c) No burning of any materials shall take place within 6 metres of any tree or tree groups to 
be retained without the prior express consent. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to ensure that damage does not occur to the trees during building or engineering 
operations. 

Operational Conditions  

5.  All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be 
carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following beneficial occupation of any 
part of the development, or in accordance with the phasing of the scheme as agreed in 
writing with the Planning Authority.  Any trees or plants which within a period of five years 
from the completion of the development die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or 
diseased, shall be replaced by the landowner in the next planting season with others of a 
similar size and species, unless the Planning Authority gives prior written consent to any 
variation. 

Reason 

In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. 

 

Page 25 of 45

Page 75

Agenda Item 9



 

6. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) (or of any Order revoking and re-
enacting that Order with or without modifications) nothing in Article 3 or Schedule 2 to that 
Order, shall operate so as to permit within the area subject of this permission any 
development referred to in Part 1, Classes A and B, and no such development shall be 
carried out at any time within that area without the prior express grant of permission by the 
Planning Authority. 
 
Reason 
 
Due to the relationship between the proposed development and its neighbour, there is 
potential for overlooking. 
 
Informative 
  

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out. 

 

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed. 

   

 Spirit Energy is covered by the provision of the COMAH 2015 Regulations. The 
proposed development is situated within the Public Information Zone of the site and 
in liaison with the site operator and the HSE special arrangements are made for 
residents/business premises in this area and particular attention is paid to ensuring 
that people are aware of the appropriate action to take in the event of an incident at 
the site. The applicant is advised to liaise with the County Council Emergency 
Planning office to allow for further discussion of available information: Senior 
Emergency Planning Officer, Resilience Unit, Cumbria County Council, Cumbria Fire 
& Rescue HQ, Carleton Ave, Penrith , Cumbria , CA10 2FA 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

  

Page 26 of 45

Page 76

Agenda Item 9



Page 27 of 45

Page 77

Agenda Item 9



Page 28 of 45

P
age 78

A
genda Item

 9



Page 29 of 45

P
age 79

A
genda Item

 9



Page 30 of 45

P
age 80

A
genda Item

 9



Page 31 of 45

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 9



Page 32 of 45

P
age 82

A
genda Item

 9



 

 
 

Appendices of Saved Policies 
 

 

Note to Members 
 

 

Below are the full wordings of the policies relevant to the applications found on the 

agenda today. 
 

 

Saved Policies 
 

 

The starting point when determining applications remains the Development Plan. 

Applications must be determined in accordance with the Development Plan unless 

material considerations, including the NPPF, indicate otherwise. 
 

 

The tilted balance under paragraph 14 of the NPPF is engaged where any of the policies 

relevant to the application are out of date or where there is no 5 year housing land 

supply. At present the Council can demonstrate a supply in excess of 5 years. The 

officers report will indicate if any policies are out of date and how much weight they can 

be given. Under the tilted balance applications should be approved unless 
 

 

"any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 

benefits, when assessed against the policies as a whole, or specific policies in the 

Framework indicate development should be restricted." 
 

 

The tilted balance is not engaged where all relevant policies are in date and there is a 

sufficient supply of housing land. 
 

 

National Planning Policy Framework 2018 
 

 

NPPF-011 

Plans and decisions should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development. 

For plan-making this means that: 

a) plans should positively seek opportunities to meet the development needs of their  
 area, and be sufficiently flexible to adapt to rapid change; 

 

 

b) strategic policies should, as a minimum, provide for objectively assessed needs for 

housing and other uses, as well as any needs that cannot be met within neighbouring 

areas (As established through statements of common ground (see paragraph 27), 

unless: 
 

 

i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular 

importance provides a strong reason for restricting the overall scale, type or distribution 

of development in the plan area (The policies referred to are those in this Framework 

Page 83

Agenda Item 9



 

(rather than those in development plans) relating to: habitats sites (and those sites listed 

in paragraph 176) and/or designated as Sites of Special Scientific 

Interest; land designated as Green Belt, Local Green Space, an Area of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty, a National Park (or within the Broads Authority) or defined as Heritage 

Coast; irreplaceable habitats; designated heritage assets (and other heritage assets of 

archaeological interest referred to in footnote 63); and areas at risk of flooding or coastal 

change); or 
 

 

ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 

benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. 
 

 

For decision-taking this means: 
 

 

c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan 

without delay; or 
 

 

d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most 

important for determining the application are out-of-date (This includes, for applications 

involving the provision of housing, situations where the local planning authority cannot 

demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing sites (with the appropriate buffer, 

as set out in paragraph 73); or where the Housing Delivery Test indicates that the 

delivery of housing was substantially below (less than 75% of) the housing requirement 

over the previous three years. Transitional arrangements for the Housing Delivery Test 

are set out in Annex 1), granting permission unless: 
 

 

i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular 

importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed (The policies 

referred to are those in this Framework (rather than those in development plans) relating 

to: habitats sites (and those sites listed in paragraph 176) and/or designated as Sites of 

Special Scientific Interest; land designated as Green Belt, Local Green Space, an Area 

 
of Outstanding Natural Beauty, a National Park (or within the Broads Authority) or defined 
as Heritage Coast; irreplaceable habitats; designated heritage assets (and other heritage 
assets of archaeological interest referred to in footnote 63); and areas at risk of flooding or 
coastal change); or 
 

 

ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 

benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. 
 

 

NPPF-083 

Planning policies and decisions should enable: 
 

 

a) the sustainable growth and expansion of all types of business in rural areas, both 

through conversion of existing buildings and well-designed new buildings; 
 

 

b) the development and diversification of agricultural and other land-based rural 

businesses; 

Page 84

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 

c) sustainable rural tourism and leisure developments which respect the character of the 

countryside; and 
 

 

d) the retention and development of accessible local services and community facilities, 

such as local shops, meeting places, sports venues, open space, cultural buildings, 

public houses and places of worship. 
 

 

NPPF-127 

Planning policies and decisions should ensure that developments: 
 

 

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term 

but over the lifetime of the development; 
 

 

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and 

effective landscaping; 
 

 

c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built 

environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate 

innovation or change (such as increased densities); 
 

 

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, 

spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive 
 

e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount 
and mix of development (including green and other public space) and support local 
facilities and transport networks; and places to live, work and visit; 

 
 

 

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and 

well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users (Planning 

policies for housing should make use of the Government's optional technical standards 

for accessible and adaptable housing, where this would address an identified need for 

such properties. Policies may also make use of the nationally described space standard, 

where the need for an internal space standard can be justified); and where crime and 

disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or community 

cohesion and resilience. 

 

 
 

 

NPPF-170 

Planning policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local 

environment by: 
 

 

a) protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites of biodiversity or geological value 

and soils (in a manner commensurate with their statutory status or identified quality in 

the development plan); 
 

Page 85

Agenda Item 9



 

 

b) recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside, and the wider 

benefits from natural capital and ecosystem services - including the economic and other 

benefits of the best and most versatile agricultural land, and of trees and woodland; 
 

 

c) maintaining the character of the undeveloped coast, while improving public access to 

it where appropriate; 
 

 

d) minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity, including by 

establishing coherent ecological networks that are more resilient to current and future 

pressures; 
 

 

e) preventing new and existing development from contributing to, being put at 

unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of soil, air, 

water or noise pollution or land instability. Development should, wherever possible, help 

to improve local environmental conditions such as air and water quality, taking into 

account relevant information such as river basin management plans; and 
 

 
f) remediating and mitigating despoiled, degraded, derelict, contaminated and unstable 

land, where appropriate. 

 

Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 
 

 

Policy C6 - Renewable and Low Carbon Energy Proposals 

In order to contribute towards the achievement of national renewable energy targets the 

Council will support development of renewable energy provided that: 
 

 

a)        Measures are taken to avoid and where appropriate mitigate any unacceptable 

negative impacts of the effects on local amenity resulting from development, 

construction and operation of the renewable energy schemes; 
 

 

b)        The proposal on its own, or in combination with other development, will not 

unduly impact on the landscape or seascape and the development would not give rise to 

an unacceptable adverse cumulative impact when considered in the context of other 

existing or consented installations; 
 

 

c)         Large scale renewable energy developments (i.e. development that generates 

more than 10 MW), where appropriate make provision for community benefits over the 

period of the development. Such benefits will directly relate to the development; 
 

 

d)         The proposal complies with the relevant policies in the Development Plan. 

e)         Proposals involving Wind Energy developments must also: 

i) be located in a 'Suitable Area' (identified on the Proposals Map) or be               for 

the repowering of an existing wind turbine/wind farm, 
 

Page 86

Agenda Item 9



 

 

ii) demonstrate that consideration has been given to the issues set out in 

the Suitable Areas for Wind Energy Technical Document, and 
 

 

iii) demonstrate that, following consultation, the planning impacts identified 

by affected local communities have been fully addressed. 
 

 

Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to sustainable development 

When determining planning applications the Council will take a positive approach to 

ensure development is sustainable. The Council will work pro-actively with applicants to 

find positive solutions that allow suitable proposals for sustainable developments to be 

approved wherever possible. 
 

The Council is committed to seeking to enhance the quality of life for residents by taking 

an integrated approach to protect, conserve and enhance the built, natural and historic 

environment whilst ensuring access to essential services and facilities and a wider 

choice of housing. This will enable the Local Plan's Vision and Objectives to be met and 

to secure development that simultaneously achieves economic, social and 

environmental gains for the Borough. 
 

 

Planning applications that accord with the Development Plan will be approved without 

delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 

 

Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of 

date at the time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless 

material considerations indicate otherwise, taking into account whether: 
 

 

a) Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably 

outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the National Planning 

Policy Framework (or any document which replaces it)  taken as a whole; or 
 

 

b) Specific policies in the Framework (or any document which replaces it) indicate that 

development should be restricted. 
 
 

 
Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria 

In order to meet the objectives outlined in Policy DS1, subject to other Development 

Plan policies which may determine the suitability of particular sites, all proposals should 

meet all of the following criteria, where possible, taking into account the scale of 

development and magnitude of impact and any associated mitigation by: 
 

 

a) Ensuring that proposed development incorporates green infrastructure designed and 

integrated to enable accessibility by walking, cycling and public transport for main travel 

purposes, particularly from areas of employment and retail, leisure and education 

facilities; 
 

 

Page 87

Agenda Item 9



 

b) Ensuring development does not prejudice road safety or increase congestion at 

junctions that are identified by the Local Highway Authority as being over-capacity; 
 

 

c) Ensuring access to necessary services, facilities and infrastructure and ensuring that 

proposed development takes into account the capacity of existing or planned utilities 

infrastructure; 

 

d) Ensuring that the health, safety and environmental effects of noise, smell, dust, light, 

vibration, fumes or other forms of pollution or nuisance arising from the proposed 

development including from associated traffic are within acceptable levels; 
 

 

e) Respecting the residential amenity of existing and committed dwellings, particularly 

privacy, security and natural light; 
 

 

f) Protecting the health, safety or amenity of occupants or users of the proposed 

development; 
 

 

g) Contributing to the enhancement of the character, appearance and historic interest of 

related landscapes, settlements, street scenes, buildings, open spaces, trees and other 

environmental assets; 
 

 

h) Contributing to the enhancement of biodiversity and geodiversity; 
 

 

i) Ensuring that construction and demolition materials are re-used on the site if possible; 
 

 

j) Avoiding adverse impact on mineral extraction and agricultural production; 
 

 

k) Ensuring that proposals incorporate energy and water efficiency measures (in 

accordance with the relevant Building Regulations), the use of sustainable drainage 

systems where appropriate and steers development away from areas of flood risk; 
 

 

l) Ensuring that any proposed development conserves and enhances the historic 

environment including heritage assets and their settings; and 
 

 

m) Development must comply with Policy DS3. 
 

 

Where the applicant demonstrates that one or more of the criteria cannot be met, they 

must highlight how the development will contribute towards the achievement of the Local 

Plan objectives by alternative means. 
 

 

Policy DS5 - Design 

New development must be of a high quality design, which will support the creation of 

attractive, vibrant places. Designs will be specific to the site and planning applications 

must demonstrate a clear process that analyses and responds to the characteristics of 

the site and its context, including surrounding uses, taking into account the Council's 

Green Infrastructure Strategy. Proposals must demonstrate clearly how they:

Page 88

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 

a) Integrate with and where possible conserve and enhance the character of the 

adjoining natural environment, taking into account relevant Supplementary Planning 

Documents; 
 

 

b) Conserve and enhance the historic environment, including heritage assets and their 

setting; 
 

 

c) Make the most effective and efficient use of the site and any existing buildings upon it; 
 

 

d) Create clearly distinguishable, well defined and designed public and private spaces 

that are attractive, accessible, coherent and safe and provide a stimulating environment; 
 

 

e) Allow permeability and ease of movement within the site and with surrounding areas, 

placing the needs of pedestrians, cyclists and public transport above those of the 

motorist, depending on the nature and function of the uses proposed; 
 

 

f) Create a place that is easy to find your way around with routes defined by a well- 

structured building layout; 
 

 

g) Prioritise building and landscape form over parking and roads, so that vehicular 

requirements do not dominate the sites appearance and character; 
 

 

h) Exhibit design quality using design cues and materials appropriate to the area, locally 

sourced wherever possible; 
 

 

i) Respect the distinctive character of the local landscape, protecting and incorporating 

key environmental assets of the area, including topography, landmarks, views, trees, 

hedgerows, habitats and skylines. Where no discernible or positive character exists, 

creating a meaningful hierarchy of space that combines to create a sense of place; 
 

 

j) Create layouts that are inclusive and promote health, well-being, community cohesion 

and public safety; 
 

 

k) Incorporate public art where this is appropriate to the project and where it can 

contribute to design objectives; 
 

 

l) Ensure that development is both accessible and usable by different age groups and 

people with disabilities;

Page 89

Agenda Item 9



m) Integrate Sustainable Drainage Systems of an appropriate form and scale;  
 

 

n) Mitigate against the impacts of climate change by the incorporation of energy and 

water efficiency measures (in accordance with the Building Regulations), the orientation 

of new buildings, and use of recyclable materials in construction; and 
 

 

o) Ensuring that new development avoids creating nesting sites for gulls e.g. through the 

provision of appropriate roof pitches. 
 

Policy H17 - Protection of Residential Privacy 

Proposals for extensions must demonstrate through good design that an acceptable 

standard of privacy can be maintained between opposing and neighbouring properties. 

Principal windows in the side elevations of habitable rooms at upper floor levels should 

be avoided where the privacy of neighbouring occupiers will be compromised. Where 

privacy is to be protected by distance alone, a minimum of 21 metres will be required 

between the facing windows of habitable rooms of opposing homes. Exceptions may be 

made for the facing windows of ground floor habitable rooms where adequate screening 

exists and in cases where normal standards of separation cannot be achieved and 

existing standards will not be eroded by accepting distances of less than 21 metres. In 

all situations the use of obscure glazing in the principal windows of habitable rooms will 

not be an acceptable measure to overcome the provisions of this policy as this is 

deemed to provide a sub-standard level of accommodation. 
 

 

Habitable areas are defined as living rooms, bedrooms, studies, dining rooms, and 

kitchens with dining areas. 
 

 
 
 
 

Policy H7 - Housing Development on Windfall Sites 

Applications for residential development will be permitted where they satisfy all of the 

following criteria: 
 

 

a)    The site is located within or adjoining the built up areas of Barrow and Dalton or 

within a development cordon identified in Policy H4; 
 

 

b)    Site planning, layout and servicing arrangements are developed comprehensively;

Page 90

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 
c)    Buildings are well designed in terms of siting, grouping, scale, orientation, detailing, 

external finishes, security and landscaping in response to the form, scale, character , 

environmental quality and appearance of the site and the surrounding area; 
 

 

d)    An acceptable standard of amenity is created for future residents of the property in 

terms of sunlighting, daylighting, privacy, outlook,  noise and ventilation; 
 

 

e)    The site is served by a satisfactory access that would not impact unduly on the 

highway network; 
 

 

f)    The site has been designed to promote accessibility by walking, cycling and public 

transport, as opposed to the private car; 
 

 

g)    The development is sustainable in its energy usage, environmental impact, 

drainage, waste management, transport implications and is not at risk of flooding; 
 

 

h)    The capacity of the current and proposed infrastructure to serve the development is 

adequate taking into account committed and planned housing development; 
 

 

i)    Where spare infrastructure capacity is not available, the site has the ability to 

provide for the infrastructure requirements it generates, subject to criterion f); 
 

 

j)    Within rural settlements the applicant will be expected to demonstrate how the 

development will enhance or maintain the vitality of the rural community where the 

housing is proposed; 
 

 

k)    Where the site is located on the edge of Barrow and Dalton, the applicant will be 

required to demonstrate how the development integrates within existing landscape 

features and is physically linked to the settlement and does not lead to an unacceptable 

intrusion into the open countryside or would result in the visual or physical coalescence 

of settlements; 
 

 

l)    The proposal will not harm the historic environment, heritage assets or their setting; 
 

 

m)    There would be no unacceptable effects on the amenities and living conditions of 

surrounding properties from overlooking, loss of light, the overbearing nature of the 

proposal or an unacceptable increase in on-street parking; and 
 

 

n)    The development must comply with Policy N3 and the design principles set out in 

the Development Strategy chapter should be followed.

Page 91

Agenda Item 9



The site should make effective use of previously developed land where possible.  

 
 

 

Policy HE3 - Listed Buildings 

Proposals for works to listed buildings, including alterations, extensions or change of 

use and development affecting setting should not cause unacceptable harm to its 

significance, including those elements which contribute to their special architectural or 

historic interest, and setting. Opportunities to enhance and better reveal their 

significance will be supported. 
 

 

Substantial harm to, or loss of, a Grade II listed building should be exceptional. 

Substantial harm to, or loss of, Grade I and II* listed buildings should be wholly 

exceptional. 
 

 

Proposals which involve substantial harm to, or loss of, a listed building including to its 

setting, will be refused unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm or loss is 

necessary to achieve substantial benefits that outweigh that harm or loss, or all of the 

following apply: 
 

 

a)    The nature of the heritage asset prevents all reasonable uses of the site; 
 

 

b)    That no viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the medium term 

through appropriate marketing that will enable its conservation; 
 

 

c)    That conservation through grant-funding or some form of charitable or public 

ownership is demonstrably not possible; and 

d)    The harm or loss is outweighed by the benefit of bringing the site back into use. 

Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance 

of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighted against the public benefits 

of the proposal, including securing its optimum viable use. 
 
 

 
Policy N3 - Protecting biodiversity and geodiversity 

The Council will support development which maintains, protects and enhances 

biodiversity across the Borough. Proposals for new development should minimise 

impacts on biodiversity and provide net gains in biodiversity where possible. Proposals 

will be expected to improve access to important biodiversity areas, and will be required

Page 92

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 
to show full details of measures to achieve this in the form of a suitable Management 

Plan. Consideration must be given to the Council's Biodiversity and Development 

Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) and any other relevant guidance. 
 

 

Designated biodiversity and geodiversity sites 
 

 

There is a presumption in favour of the preservation and enhancement of sites of 

international and national importance. Development proposals that would cause a direct 

or indirect adverse effect on any site of international or national importance, including its 

qualifying habitats and species will only be permitted where the Council and relevant 

partner organisations are satisfied that: 
 

 

.;    The adverse effect cannot be avoided (for example through locating the 

development on an alternative site); and 
 

 

.;     Any adverse impacts can be mitigated for example through appropriate      habitat 

creation, restoration or enhancement on site or in another      appropriate location, in 

agreement with the Council and relevant partner      organisations, via planning 

conditions, agreements or obligations. 
 

 

Where mitigation is not possible or viable or where there would still be significant 

residual harm following mitigation, compensation measures should be made to provide 

an area of equivalent or greater biodiversity value. Compensation should be secured 

through planning conditions or planning obligations. 
 

 

Special compensation considerations apply in the case of Natura 2000 sites. If harm to 

such sites is allowed because the development meets the above criteria and imperative 

reasons of overriding public interest have been demonstrated, the European Habitats 

and Wild Birds Directive requires that all necessary compensatory measures are taken 

to ensure the overall coherence of the network of European Sites as a whole is 

protected. 
 

 

Local wildlife sites and geological designations such as County wildlife sites, wildlife 

corridors and Local Geological Sites (LGS) will be afforded a high degree of protection 

from potentially harmful development, unless a strong socio-economic need can be 

demonstrated and the development cannot be situated in a less sensitive location. 
 

 

Assessing the effects of development on biodiversity and geodiversity 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 93

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 

Proposals for new development which may result in significant harm to biodiversity must 

be accompanied by appropriate surveys, undertaken by a suitably qualified person, to 

identify the potential effects of development. In such cases, the mitigation hierarchy, as 

referenced in the Council's Biodiversity and Development SPD should be applied and it 

must be demonstrated that avoidance measures have been considered and justification 

for ruling these out must be given. Where significant harm is avoidable, it should be 

adequately mitigated, or as a last resort, compensated for. 
 

 

Where mitigation is required in the form of species translocation, the Council will work 

with partners to identify suitable sites for translocation. 
 

 

Where there is evidence to suspect the presence of protected species, the planning 

application should be accompanied by appropriate, up-to-date surveys carried out at the 

correct time of year for the particular species assessing their presence to ensure that the 

proposal is sympathetic to the ecological interests of the site. 
 

 

Policy N4 - Protecting other wildlife features 

New development should conserve and enhance biodiversity features, and proposals for 

new development should be submitted with landscaping proposals, including a 

Management Plan, which show how existing trees, riparian corridors/trees, hedgerows, 

ponds and other wildlife features will be integrated into the development. Landscaping 

proposals should also include new trees and other planting of suitable species for the 

location to enhance the landscape of the site and its surroundings as appropriate. 
 

 

Trees which positively contribute to the visual amenity and environmental value of that 

location will be protected. New development should not result in the loss of or damage 

to ancient woodland or veteran or aged trees outside woodland. 
 

 

Where the conservation of biodiversity features cannot be achieved, the applicant must 

justify their loss. Where the Council is satisfied that the loss is adequately justified, 

replacement trees, hedgerows, ponds and other wildlife features will be required. 
 

 

Proposals which include landscaping proposals, replacement of wildlife features, new 

wildlife features, or which integrate existing wildlife features into the development, will be 

required to demonstrate that measures will be put in place to manage these features as 

appropriate, including the use of suitable legal agreements. 

Page 94

Agenda Item 9



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

29th October 2019 
 

 

INDEX 
 

 
 
 

Page Reference  Address Proposal  

2 2019/0566 Chapel Hills 
Smallholding Oak 
Lea Road Barrow-in-
Furness 

Application for an extension to agricultural building 
to provide welfare facilities and storage  
 

9 2019/0483 
(Topic 
Report) 

Askam Windcluster, 
Far Old Park Farm, 
Broughton Road 
Dalton 

Submission by Windcluster to modify the 
Unilateral Undertaking dated 13th January 2003 
(Section 106) to permit the continued operation of 
the wind farm for a further 10 years expiring August 
2029.  
  
 13 

 
2019/0356 Over-spill car park to 

rear of Clarkes Arms, 
Rampside, Barrow-in-
Furness 
 
 
 

Erection of a detached 2 storey three bedroom 
dwelling. 
 

 

Page 95

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



  Part One

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 29th October, 2019

Reporting Officer:  Planning Manager 

(D)

Title: Appeal Decision 79 Romney Park Dalton in Furness

Summary and Conclusions: 

The Committee upheld the Officer recommendation, and the application was 
refused on the basis of the impact upon the living conditions of occupiers of 
the adjacent neighbour. The Inspector found conflict with Local Plan policy 
H16 and Chapter 12 of the NPPF.

An application for costs against the Council was also dismissed.

Recommendations: 

That the information be noted

Report

The application was for a two storey side extension to a house.  As the 
adjacent neighbouring property was a bungalow the main issues raised were 
related to the impact upon the living conditions of those occupiers. Central to 
this was the bedroom window in the gable of the bungalow to which sun and 
daylighting would be adversely affected by the initial design.

The agent tried to redesign the extension to overcome this objection. A simple 
peer review of the lighting assessment highlighted that the document did not 
follow established industry standards and was insufficient to draw a positive 
conclusion from.

Planning permission was refused due to conflict with (then) emerging policy 
H16 and with NPPF paragraph 127. Policy H16 seeks to avoid schemes that 
would have an overbearing impact or reduce amenities by reducing natural 
lighting. The national framework encourages development that promotes high 
standards of amenity. The Inspector considered both sides of the case and 
agreed that the Authority was correct in refusing consent for the reasons 
stated. 

A secondary action to award costs against the Authority, on the grounds of 
unreasonable behaviour during the committee meeting and not having 
sufficient policy justification to refuse the proposal, was also rejected. The 

Page 97

Agenda Item 10



Inspector recognised that it is common practise at committee to limit 
presenters to a fixed period to put their case across, and found that the 
emerging policies had sufficient weight to substantiate the refusal. 

(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has no financial implications.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Decisions from Planning Inspectorate (attached as appendices)

Report Author

J Hipkiss, Development Services Manager

Page 98

Agenda Item 10



  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 19 August 2019 by Hannah Ellison MSc BSc (Hons) 

Decision by Susan Ashworth BA (Hons) BPL MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State 

Decision date: 09 September 2019 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/W0910/D/19/3230631 

79 Romney Park, Dalton-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA15 8BN 

• The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
against a refusal to grant planning permission. 

• The appeal is made by Mr Jason Durkin against the decision of Barrow-In-Furness 

Borough Council. 
• The application Ref B21/2019/0009, dated 4 January 2019, was refused by notice dated 

16 April 2019. 
• The development proposed is a two-storey side extension to provide a larger kitchen, 

utility and downstairs cloakroom to ground floor along with en-suite bedroom to first 
floor. 

 

 

Decision 

1. The appeal is dismissed. 

Application for costs 

2. An application for costs was made by Mr Jason Durkin against Barrow-In-

Furness Borough Council. This application is the subject of a separate Decision. 

Appeal Procedure 

3. The site visit was undertaken by an Appeal Planning Officer whose 

recommendation is set out below and to which the Inspector has had regard 

before deciding the appeal. 

Procedural Matter 

4. Since the application was determined and the appeal submitted, the Council 

has adopted the Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 (the Local Plan). The 

reason for refusal references the policy of the then emerging Local Plan as it 

was at that time and the appellant has been able to make an assessment of the 
scheme against the emerging policy in the appeal statement. Furthermore, 

both main parties have been given an additional opportunity to comment on 

the change to the development plan and I have had regard to any views 
expressed. It is my duty to determine the appeal against the most up to date 

development plan policies and I am satisfied that no party has been prejudiced 

by the consideration of the appeal proposal against the policies of the now 
adopted Local Plan. 

Page 99

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/W0910/D/19/3230631 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

Main Issue 

5. The effect of the proposal on the living conditions of occupiers at No.81 

Romney Park, with particular regard to outlook and daylight. 

Reasons 

6. The appeal site comprises a two-storey semi-detached dwelling, occupying an 

elevated position above the highway and the adjacent detached bungalow. The 

proposed development would extend the host property to the side at ground 

and first floor level. 

7. Policy H16 of the Local Plan states that extensions to dwellings will be 

permitted unless they adversely affect the amenities of neighbouring properties 
by virtue of an undue loss of sunlight or daylight or by the creation of an 

overbearing impact or unacceptable level of enclosure. 

8. In this case, the extension would project beyond the side elevation of the host 

property and would be within close proximity to a side window of No.81 

Romney Park. This window serves a bedroom, a habitable room, and is the only 
form of outlook to that room. Whilst the appeal property has an existing single 

storey side extension, this is positioned at a further distance from the 

neighbouring window. This proposal would see the interface distance between 

the properties reduce to approximately 2.4m and in addition the bulk and 
massing of the building would be significantly larger when viewed from the 

window. This would result in an uninviting outlook and create an oppressive 

living environment within the bedroom. 

9. Further, whilst it is acknowledged that the overall height of the proposal has 

been reduced, to reflect a gradual step down between the properties, as the 
bungalow is located on a lower level to the appeal property the side wall of the 

proposal would remain of a substantial height, and thus result in an 

overbearing sense of enclosure to occupiers at No.81. 

10. Reference has been made to other limited interface distances within the area. I 

do not have the full details of all of these cases before me and cannot be sure 
that the exact circumstances, the context or policies against which they were 

approved, are the same as the proposal before me. In some instances, there is 

a significant difference in circumstances. For example, it the affected room in 
the case of 24 South Row is a non-habitable room with a dual aspect. At 

Sherborne Avenue the two dwellings appear to both be part of a new build 

development, and buyers would be aware of the outlook to the third bedroom. 
In terms of Friars Lane, information about the existing building and how it 

functions is limited. In any event, the instances that have been drawn to my 

attention are not necessarily good examples of development to follow. 

Moreover, notwithstanding these cases, the appeal has been determined on its 
own merits in the light of the current policy and guidance. 

11. It is noted the bedroom window of No.81 is south facing and thus benefits from 

some direct sunlight. Indeed, I observed this at the time of site visit. Policy 

H16 seeks to ensure extensions will not adversely affect the amenities of 

neighbouring properties by an undue loss of sunlight or daylight. Both parties 
agree the proposal would not impact on sunlight and I have no reason to find 

otherwise, however this has a neutral impact on the main issue. 

Page 100

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/W0910/D/19/3230631 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          3 

12. Turning to the matter of daylight, it is acknowledged the existing relationship 

between the two properties results in already reduced diffused daylight levels, 

when assessed against recognised British Research Establishment (BRE) tests. 
As noted from the submitted daylight assessment, the proposed extension 

would further reduce the amount of light to below the recommended 27% 

target. However, the reduction from current levels remains marginally above 

the 80% recommended reduction factor. 

13. It is noted the daylight assessment has not been carried out by a qualified 
surveyor or generated using computer software. Whilst there may be some 

concerns with the accuracy of the figures, I have not been provided with firm 

evidence that the findings are considerably incorrect. Nevertheless, due to the 

south facing orientation of the bedroom window and the reduced ridge height 
of the extension, when compared with the existing relationship between the 

dwellings this proposal would not result in such a significant loss of diffused 

daylight that would harm the living conditions of occupiers at No.81. 

14. Consequently, taking all the above into consideration, whilst I do not find that 

the proposed development would impact on sunlight or daylight reaching the 
bedroom window of No.81 Romney Park, it would harm the living conditions of 

its occupiers in terms of outlook and this is sufficient to justify dismissing the 

appeal. It would therefore conflict with Policy H16 of the Local Plan and would 
also be inconsistent with the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 (the 

Framework), particularly chapter 12, which seeks to ensure developments 

create places that are safe, inclusive and which promote health and well-being, 

with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users. 

Other Matters 

15. It is acknowledged the objection to the original proposal was subsequently 

withdrawn following receipt of amended plans. Nevertheless, a lack of 
opposition for a proposal is not a ground for granting planning permission. I 

acknowledge that the proposal would, by removing an existing facing window, 

have the potential to improve privacy. However, this does not outweigh the 
harm I have identified.  

16. Concern has been raised regarding the Council’s processing of the planning 

application, particularly regarding treatment at the committee meeting. 

However, these are not matters for deliberation in the context of a planning 

appeal and the recommendation is based on the information before me. 

17. I have also had regard to the appellant’s concerns that the planning application 

was not determined against adopted policy. However, paragraph 48 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2019 makes it clear that great weight can 

be given to relevant policies in emerging plans if the plan is at an advanced 

stage of preparation. Notwithstanding this, as set out in the procedural matters 
above, it is my duty to determine the appeal in accordance with the most up to 

date development plan policies, on which the appellant has had the opportunity 

to comment. 

Conclusion and Recommendation 

18. For the reasons given above and having regard to all other matters raised, I 

recommend that the appeal is dismissed. 

Page 101

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/W0910/D/19/3230631 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          4 

Hannah Ellison 

Appeals Planning Officer 

 
Inspector’s Decision 

19. I have considered all the submitted evidence and the Appeal Planning Officer’s 

report and on that basis the appeal is dismissed. 

Susan Ashworth 

INSPECTOR 

 

Page 102

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

 
 

 

Costs Decision 
Site visit made on 19 August 2019 by Hannah Ellison MSc BSc (Hons) 

Decision by Susan Ashworth BA (Hons) BPL MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State  

Decision date: 09 September 2019 

 

Costs application in relation to Appeal Ref: APP/W0910/D/19/3230631 

79 Romney Park, Dalton-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA15 8BN 

• The application is made under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, sections 78, 
322 and Schedule 6, and the Local Government Act 1972, section 250(5). 

• The application is made by Mr Jason Durkin for a full award of costs against Barrow-In-

Furness Borough Council. 
• The appeal was against the refusal of planning permission for a two-storey side 

extension to provide a larger kitchen, utility and downstairs cloakroom to ground floor 
along with en-suite bedroom to first floor. 

 

 

Decision 

1. The application for an award of costs is refused. 

Procedure 

2. An Appeal Planning Officer has set out the recommendation below, to which the 

Inspector has had regard before deciding the application. 

Reasons 

3. The Planning Practice Guidance (the Guidance) advises that, irrespective of the 

outcome of the appeal, costs may be awarded against a party who has 

behaved unreasonably and thereby caused the party applying for costs to incur 
unnecessary or wasted expense in the appeal process.  

4. The Guidance also makes it clear that costs cannot be claimed for the period 

during the determination of the planning application although all parties are 

expected to behave reasonably throughout the planning process. Although 

costs can only be awarded in relation to unnecessary or wasted expense at the 
appeal or other proceeding, behaviour and actions at the time of the planning 

application can be taken into account in determining whether or not costs 

should be awarded. 

5. The crux of the Applicant’s case in seeking an award for costs appears to be 

grounded in substantive matters. Namely that the Council failed to determine 

the application against relevant policies and failed to sufficiently defend their 
decision through a lack of evidence and substance. Additionally, the Applicant 

feels the Council acted unreasonably during the determination of the 

application, particularly during the planning committee meeting. 

6. The planning decision is one which is a matter of judgement and having regard 

to the Council’s evidence in the committee report it is sufficiently clear to me 

Page 103

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Costs Decision APP/W0910/D/19/3230631 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

that their objections centre around the effect of the proposed development on 

the living conditions of adjacent occupiers. The Council’s decision was clearly 

supported with substantive reasons based on the assessment of the site and 
interpretation of policy. 

7. Whilst the failure to demonstrate consistency in decision-making can amount to 

unreasonable behaviour, the Council has indicated that there are clear 

distinctions between previous approvals in the area and the proposed 

extension. Indeed, I have found that the limited information submitted in 
respect of these cases did not demonstrate that they are directly comparable to 

the appeal proposal. As such I cannot reach the conclusion in this case that the 

Council acted unreasonably in this regard. 

8. I note the applicant is aggrieved with the proceedings during the Council’s 

Planning Committee meeting, particularly the refusal to grant the applicant 
additional time to present his case. Frustrating as such a circumstance can be, 

it is not unusual for a Committee to limit the amount of time each speaker is 

allowed. Further, the Council has their own internal complaints procedure to 

investigate such matters. Consequently, I cannot find this as unreasonable 
behaviour on the Council’s part. 

9. Turning to the Development Plan, paragraph 48 of the National Planning Policy 

Framework 2019 (the Framework) makes it clear that great weight can be 

given to relevant policies in emerging plans if the plan is at an advanced stage 

of preparation. I note at the time of decision the Inspector’s report had been 
submitted to the Council and, subject to recommended modifications, the plan 

was to be formally adopted on 4 June 2019. Based on the evidence before me I 

am not aware that any amendments were made to the then draft policy H16. 
Therefore, due to the advanced stage of the plan, it was not inappropriate for 

the Council to have given great weight to emerging policy H16 of the Barrow 

Borough Local Plan 2016-2031. In accordance with the Guidance, the Council 

refused the application in accordance with development plan policy and no 
material considerations indicated that planning permission should have been 

granted. 

10. It seems to me that there was a fundamental disagreement between the 

parties relating to the merits of the proposal and in particular the submitted 

daylight assessments. To my mind, those matters were unlikely to be resolved 
during the application process and thus could only be dealt with at appeal. As 

such, the appeal process was unavoidable and consequently there has been no 

unnecessary or wasted expense in making the appeal. 

Conclusion 

11. With the above in mind, I find that the Council has not acted unreasonably and 

thereby caused the applicant to incur unnecessary or wasted expense. A claim 
for costs is not therefore justified and accordingly it is hereby recommended for 

refusal. 

Hannah Ellison 

Appeals Planning Officer 

 
Inspector’s Decision 

Page 104

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Costs Decision APP/W0910/D/19/3230631 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          3 

12. I have considered all the submitted evidence and the Appeal Planning Officer’s 

report and on that basis the application for an award of costs is refused. 

Susan Ashworth 

INSPECTOR 

Page 105

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	7 Delegated Approvals - For Information (Booklet attached)
	8 Planning Applications (Booklet attached)
	2019/0540 11 Sun Street 
	Consultation Responses 
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation 

	2019/0594 Hayeswater Drive 
	Consultation responses 
	Officer Report 
	Recommendation

	Appendices of Saved Policies 

	9 Deferred Applications (Booklet attached)
	2019/0566 Chapel Hills 
	Consultation responses
	Officer Report 
	Recommendation

	2019/0483 Askam Windcluster 
	2019/0356 Clarkes Arms Rampside 
	Consultation responses 
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation

	Appendices of Saved Policies 
	Index

	10 Appeal Decision 79 Romney Park Dalton-in-Furness
	Appeal Decision 3230631_
	COSTS DECISION 3230631 _


